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2018 12

PCAOB

PCAOB

PCAOB

SEC

2012

EQUITABLE Act
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oOoOooodn
CovID-19
2019
6.0
PCAOB
PCAOB
PCAOB
PCAOB
PCAOB
SEC 2019 11 SEC
2020 19 SEC PCAOB
PCAOB
PCAOB
PCAOB
2019
PCAOB
EQUITABLE Act
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2013 SEC
SEC
2015
SEC
CSRC
2002 106
CSRC
SEC
SEC
2019
SEC
SEC
SEC
SEC
ADS
ADS
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
31 2018 12 31
2017
2018
2019
2018 377,124 0.4
0.5 2019 346,664
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SEC
SEC SEC
SEC
SEC
2017 12
Form 20-F
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2019 375,734
2018 348,410



28,714

3.3

2019
2019

29,070
20,517
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2018

2018 21,210

2018 1.1



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

a
Q@
G
“

G

12 31
2018 2019
1 50,811 13.5 45,146 12.0
190,871 50.6 197,244 52.5
2
3 83,478 22.1 87,623 23.3
4 20,211 5.4 21,978 5.9
5 31,753 8.4 23,743 6.3
377,124 100.0 375,734 100.0
I1DC HD
12 31
2018 2019
75,493 20.0 88,145 23.5
116,062 30.8 109,799 29.2
59,422 15.8 57,361 15.3
59,736 15.8 63,567 16.9
37,697 10.0 27,792 7.4
348,410 92.4 346,664 92.3
12 31
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2018 2019
377,124 100.0 375,734 100.0
348,410 92.4 346,664 92.3
28,714 7.6 29,070 7.7
21,210 5.6 20,517 5.5
99,298 112,600 -

IFRS 15

IFRS

MVNO
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30
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2017 12 31
10
ECL
ECL
ECL
1ASB 2019
2019 12 31
IFRS 2020
1AS 1AS 2020
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS 2020
IFRS 17 2021
1AS 2022
IFRS 10 IAS 28
2018
IFRS 2020
1ASB 2019 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2018 377,124 0.4 1,390 2019 375,734
2018 50,811 11.1 2019 45,146
12.0 2018 19,723
6.6 2019 18,425 2018 31,088
14.0 2019 26,721
2018 190,871 3.3 2019
197,244 52.5
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2019 12 31
335.6
2018 10.8 2019 123,203
2018 12 31 145.8 7.3 5.0 2019 12 31 153.1
2018 74,262 7.9 2019
68,413
2018 83,478
5.0 2019 87,623 23.3 1DC
loT
2018 20,211 8.7 2019 21,978 2019
5.9 IP-VPN
2018 31,753 25.2 2019 23,743
2019 6.3
2018 348,410 0.5 2019 346,664
2018 75,493 16.8 2019 88,145
2018 20.0 2019 23.5
11,611 2019
IFRS 16
2018 116,062 5.4
2019 109,799 2019
2018 59,422 3.5 2019 57,361
2019 48,472 2018 4.6
2019 8,889
2018 3.0
2018 59,736
6.4 2019 63,567 2018 15.8
2019 16.9
2018 37,697 26.3 2019 27,792

741243



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)

OooooOodd
2018 2,708 34.4 2019 3,639
2019 1,607
2018 79 2019 4
2019 12 31
2018 12 28 1.6
2019 6,322 23.4 25.0
2019 6,759
31
2019 20,517 2018
21,210 3.3
12 31

2018 2019
99,298 112,600
(85,954) (77,214)
(16,283) (31,288)
« ) (2,939) 4,098

2018 12 31 16,666 24.8 2019 12 31 20,791
2018 64.0 2019 78.0 2018 2,939
2019 4,098
2018 99,298
13,302 2019 112,600
2018 85,954 8,740 2019
77,214
2018 16,283 2019 31,288
2019
2018 12 31 185,915
5,564 2019 12 31 191,479
2020
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2019 12 31 245,847
12 31
2018 2019
49,537 42,527
1,139 4,444
44,852 32,051
216 —
@ 95,744 79,022
) 42,146 2019 12 31
2018 12 31 95,744 16,722 2019 12 31 79,022
2018 12 31 14.4 2019 12 31 11.2
2019 12 31 53.8
2018 12 31 0.3 2019 12 31 2.9
2018 12 31 45,991
2019 12 31 36,495
2019 12 31 99.4 0.4 0.2
82.9 17.1
2019 12 31
12 31
2018 2019 2020 ( )
74,940 77,557 85,000
2019 46
56 56
2019 77,557 2018 74,940 3.5
2020 85,000 56
45,300 140,000 2020
110,000 56
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2019 12 31
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

(€]
42,527 42,527

36,495 4,444 1,078 26,032 965 940 3,036
42,146 11,569 10,887 10,345 3,658 2,252 3,435
8,855 2,628 1,013 2,980 479 439 1,316
20,941 20,941
150,964 82,109 12,978 39,357 5,102 3,631 7,787
€D)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
( )
3,055 - - - - - 3,055 3,055
27 - - - - - 27 27
75 - - - - - 75 75
327 - - - - - 327 327
1,092 - - - - - 1,092 1,092
2,724 - - - - - 2,724 2,724
48 37 24 20 18 141 288 235
1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7
25 25 25 25 11 62 173 157
2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3
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2018 12 31 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
( )
4,909 - - - - - 4,909 4,909
20 - - - - - 20 20
76 - - - - - 76 76
251 - - - - - 251 251
751 - - - - - 751 751
69 - - - - - 69 69
52 47 36 22 22 157 336 272
1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7
25 25 25 25 25 74 199 176
2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3
2018 12 31 2019 2048
2019 12 31 2020 2036
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
( )
33,393 1,016 25,983 920 911 2,833 65,056 64,410
2.8 2.8 2.8 1.2 1.2 1.2
13,505 - - - - - 13,505 13,505
@ 3.8 - - - - _
48 37 24 20 18 141 288 235
1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7
25 25 25 25 11 62 173 157
2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3
@ 2019 12 31
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2018 12 31 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
( )
50,409 18,019 968 20,945 876 3,586 94,803 93,867
3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 1.2 1.2
190 - - - - - 190 190
1 4.2 - - - - -
52 a7 36 22 22 157 336 272
1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7
25 25 25 25 25 74 199 176
2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3
@ 2018 12 31
/
2019 5G
5G
5G
Al loT
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2019 12 31
67,054,958,321 N/A
13,877,410, 000 N/A
2019 12 31
67,054,958,321
13,877,410, 000 O
80,932,368,321
)
2019 12 31
( )
2002 10 68,317,270,803() 68,317,270,803 68,317,270,803 68,317,270,803
2002 11 15 6,868, 767,600 75,186,038,403 6,868,767,600 75,186,038,403
2002 12 18 428,148,100 75,614,186,503 428,148,100 75,614,186,503
2004 19 5,318,181,818(* 80,932,368,321 5,318,181,818 80,932,368,321
(¢
@
(€]
(4
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2019 12 31
0
0
0
5 67,054,958,321 82.85
O] 1,720 13,877,410,000 17.15
0
1,725 80,932,368,321 100.00
(@
2019 12 31
57,377,053,317
100133 85.57 70.89
31 ( )
5,614,082,653
17 8.37 6.94
( )
1,652,200
( )
1,437,045,756 34,318,810
10.35 1.77
( )
388 Greenwich 1,401,074,746
Citigroup Inc. Street, New York,
10013, USA 3.954.000
T 0.02 0.00
( )
1,401,074,746
10.09 1.73
1209 Orange Street, 1.266.251.025
BlackRock, Inc. Wilmington DE 19801, 9.12 1.56
United States ( )
203,732,692
81,673,300
1,248,678,064
8.99 1.54
( ) 26,242,500
383 Madison Ave.,
JPMorgan Chase &
New York 10179, 937,029,572
Co.
United States
72,237,399
0.52 0.08
( )
937,029,572
6.75 1.15
( )
1,037,754,265
7.48 1.28
Corporate Trust ( )
The Bank of New Center, 1209 Orange 496,031,000
York Mellon o 3.57 0.61
Corporation Street Wilmington, ( )
orporatio Delaware, 19801 USA
511,240,181
3.68 0.63
( )
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168, Robinson Road
i » * 971,432,320
E!C_ir;vate Capital Tower #37- 7.00 1.20
imrte 01, Singapore 068912 ( )
Templeton Global | Box N-7759, Lyford 965,225,382 6.96 119
Advisors Limited Cay, Nassau, Bahamas ( ) )
2019 29 2018 12 31 8,891
0.109851 0.125 2020 26
2019 2019 12 31
9,262 0.114441 0.125
2020 31
2020 26 12
2019
5G

2019
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2005 2011 12
2013
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2020 26 10
15
2020 26
2020 26 2023 2022
2019
2019
2019 11
2019 22
2019 19
2020 17
2020 23
2020 26 2019
100033
31

56
2012

58 2020

True
Corporation Public Company Limited
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56 2020

GSM

49 2017

(executive master
degree of business administration (EMBA)

55 2018 10

53 2019
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(executive master degree of business administration (EMBA)
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MBA
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72 2005
CNOOC
S
2014 10
0CBC
2004 2010
2005 2016
2013
(HKICPA)
1976
KPMG 1984 2003
1997 2000 KPMG
KPMG
70 2005
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70 2014
BlackRock
1994
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30
)
30
65 2018 10
1937
2001
2011
« ) 2005
2008
2011 2015 ( )
2020 26 2023 2022
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56 2015
55 2012 10
1989
2006 EMBA
52 2020
EMBA
41 2018 10
46 2020
Zhejiang Provincial Financial Development Co., Ltd.
Zhejiang Nongdu Agricultural
Products Co., Ltd
Armed Police Hangzhou Command
School Zhejiang Provincial Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd.
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2019 12 31
10.802
2019 12 31
9.203
@
3
2019
- 221 648 113 982
- 199 603 111 913
4 - 66 399 43 508
- 197 458 106 761
5 - 66 98 41 205
6 - 37 399 32 468
7 - 199 603 112 914
2
487 - - - 487
250 - - - 250
266 - - - 266
266 - - - 266
- 265 494 107 866
- 253 494 107 854
8 - 309 458 111 878
- 145 356 84 585
9 - - - - -
1,269 1,957 ,010 967 9,203
(€H)
@)
®3)
2016 2018
583 578 206
111 642 578
4 2019 19
) 2019 19
6) 2019
) 2020 17
(©) 2020 26
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ooooogd
©) 2020 26
2020 26
2018 11 2,394
3.81
2020 11
33.3
66.7 100 2019 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 136 2018 12 31
30 2019 12 31
166 2018 12 31 30
2013

109
240

93/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

))
2018 2019

70.57 1.51 72.31 0.54
(1,066.31) (22.82) (1,092.60) (8.16)

6.23 1.90 9.15 2.68
(94.14) (28.71) (138.26) (40.49)

76.80 3.41 81.46 3.22
(1,160.45) (51.53) (1,230.86) (48.65)
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2020 28

59 ) 131

15.11
IFRS

)
25 ) 193
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20-F

2020 30

23 103 )
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@

2018 12 31 2019 12 31
16,666 2,518 20,791 3,142
6,814 1,030 3,628 548
20,475 3,094 21,489 3,247
478 72 474 72
4,832 730 2,880 435
23,619 3,569 22,219 3,357
- - 39 6
121 18 1,662 251
73,005 11,031 73,182 11,058
407,795 61,618 410,008 61,952
10 66,644 10,070 59,206 8,946
1 - - 61,549 9,300
21,568 3,259 - -
12 29,922 4,521 29,923 4,521
13 14,161 2,140 16,349 2,470
14 38,051 5,750 39,192 5,922
15 852 129 1,458 220
16 6,544 989 7,577 1,145
17 4,840 731 4,687 708
590,377 89,206 629,949 95,185
663,382 100,237 703,131 106,243
18 49,537 7,485 42,527 6,426
18 1,139 172 4,444 671
19 107,887 16,302 102,616 15,505
20 43,497 6,572 48,516 7,331
21 55,783 8,429 54,388 8,218
601 91 243 37
22 101 15 11,569 1,748
23 375 57 358 54
258,920 39,123 264,661 39,990
18 44,852 6,777 32,051 4,843
22 115 17 30,577 4,620
23 1,454 220 1,097 166
16 13,138 1,985 19,078 2,883
804 121 627 95
60,363 9,121 83,430 12,606
319,283 48,244 348,091 52,597
24 80,932 12,229 80,932 12,229
25 262,137 39,609 271,578 41,035
343,069 51,838 352,510 53,264
1,030 156 2,530 382
344,099 51,993 355,040 53,647
663,382 100,237 703,131 106,243
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12 31
2017 2018 2019

26 366,229 55,337 377,124 56,983 375,734 56,773
(74,951) (11,325) (75,493) (11,407) (88,145) (13,319)
27 (103,969) (15,710) (116,062) (17,537) (109,799) (16,591)
(58,434) (8,829) (59,422) (8,979) (57,361) (8,667)
28 (56,043) (8,468) (59,736) (9,026) (63,567) (9,605)
29 (45,612) (6,892) (37,697) (5,696) (27,792) (4,199)
(339,009) (51,224) (348,410) (52,645) (346,664) (52,381)

27,220 4,113 28,714 4,339 29,070 4,392
30 (3,291) (497) (2,708) (409) (3,639) (550)
147 22 38 6 30 5

877 133 2,104 318 1,573 238

24,953 3,770 28,148 4,253 27,034 4,085
31 (6,192) (936) (6,810) (1,029) (6,322) (955)
18,761 2,835 21,338 3,224 20,712 3,130

_ _ (324) (49) 604 91
_ _ 82 12 (147) (22)

_ _ (242) € 457 69

(400) (60) _ _ _ _

100 15 _ — _ —

(259) (39) 154 23 102 15
7 1 ©) ) ) ©)

(552) (83) 147 22 100 15

(552) (83) (95) (19) 557 84

18,209 2,751 21,243 3,210 21,269 3,214

18,617 2,813 21,210 3,205 20,517 3,100

144 22 128 19 195 29

18,761 2,835 21,338 3,224 20,712 3,130

18,065 2,730 21,115 3,190 21,074 3,184

144 22 128 19 195 29

18,209 2,751 21,243 3,210 21,269 3,214
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0.23

3.48

0.26

3.93 0.25 3.78

80,932
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®
(
) —
2017
80,932 17,160 10,746 72,611 - 711 (622) 133,839 315,377 971 316,348
_ - - - - - - 18,617 18,617 144 18,761
_ - - - - (293) (259) - (552) - (552)
_ - - - - (293) (259) 18,617 18,065 144 18,209
- (80) - - - - - ©) (€1)) - C)
_ 46 - - - - - - 46 (196) (150)
_ - - - - - - - - (89) (89)
32 - - - - - - - (7,530)  (7,530) - (7,530)
25 _ - - 1,686 - - - (1,686) - - -
- - - - - ) - - () - ()
2017 12 31
80,932 17,126 10,746 74,297 - 414 (881) 143,233 325,867 830 326,697
- - - 302 - - - 2,673 2,975 @ 2,974
2018
80,932 17,126 10,746 74,599 - 414 (881) 145,906 328,842 829 329,671
_ - - - - - - 21,210 21,210 128 21,338
_ - - - - (249) 154 - (95) - (95)
_ - - - - (249) 154 21,210 21,115 128 21,243
_ _ _ _ _ (5) _ 5 _ _ _
- - - - - - - - - 5 5
_ 680 - - - - - - 680 265 945
_ - - - - - - - - 20) (20)
_ - - - - - - - - @m Qam
32 - - - . - - - (7,568)  (7,568) - (7,568)
25 - - - 1,875 - - - (1,875) - - -
2018 12 31
80,932 17,806 10,746 76,474 - 160 (727) 157,678 343,069 1,030 344,099
_ - - (243) - - - (2,197)  (2,440) ®) (2,443)
2019
(
) 80,932 17,806 10,746 76,231 - 160 (727) 155,481 340,629 1,027 341,656
_ - - - - - - 20,517 20,517 195 20,712
_ - - - - 455 102 - 557 - 557
_ - - - - 455 102 20,517 21,074 195 21,269
_ - - - - . - - - 1,500 1,500
_ 3 - - - - - - 3 (1) ®)
_ - - - - - - - - (181) (181)
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- (305) - - - - - - (305) - (305)
32 - - - - - - - (8,891)  (8,891) - (8.,891)
25 _ - - 1,812 - - - (1,812) - - -
25 - - - - 23 - - (23) - - -
2019 12 31
80,932 17,504 10,746 78,043 23 615 (625) 165,272 352,510 2,530 355,040
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2017
32
25
2017 12 31
2018
32
25
2018 12 31
2019
(
)
32
25

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)

ooooooo
12,229 2,593 1,624 10,972 - 107 (94) 20,223 47,653 147 47,800
_ _ _ _ - - - 2,813 2,813 22 2,835
_ _ _ — - (44) (39) - (83) _ (83)
_ _ _ - - (44) (39) 2,813 2,730 22 2,751
- 12) - - - - - ()] 13) - 13)
_ 7 _ _ - - — - 7 (30) (23)
_ _ _ _ _ - - - - (13) (13)
_ _ _ _ - - - (1,138)  (1,138) - (1,138)
_ _ - 255 - - - (255) - - -
- - - - - @ - - @ - )
12,229 2,588 1,624 11,226 - 63 (133) 21,643 49,239 125 49,364
_ _ _ 46 - - - 404 450 () 449
12,229 2,588 1,624 11,272 - 63 (133) 22,046 49,688 125 49,813
_ _ _ _ - - - 3,205 3,205 19 3,224
_ _ _ - - (38) 23 - (14) - (14)
_ _ _ _ - (38) 23 3,205 3,190 19 3,210
- - - - - w - 1 - — -
- - - - - - - - - 1 1
_ 103 - - - - - - 103 40 143
- - - - - - - - - (€)] (©)
_ _ _ _ _ _ - - - @7 @n
_ _ _ _ - — - (1,144)  (1,149) _ (1,144)
_ _ - 283 - - - (283) - — -
12,229 2,690 1,624 11,555 - 24 (110) 23,825 51,838 156 51,993
_ _ - (€1)) - - - (332) (369) ) (369)
12,229 2,690 1,624 11,519 - 24 (110) 23,493 51,469 155 51,624
_ _ _ _ - - - 3,100 3,100 29 3,130
_ _ _ - - 69 15 - 84 - 84
_ _ _ _ - 69 15 3,100 3,184 29 3,214
_ _ _ _ _ - - - - 227 227
- 0 - - - - - - 0 (@) @
_ _ _ _ - - - - - @n @7
- (46) - - - - - - (46) — (46)
_ _ _ _ _ - - (1,343)  (1,343) — (1,343)
- - - 274 - - - (274) - - -
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25 - - - - 3 - - ®) - - _

2019 12 31
12,229 2,645 1,624 11,792 3 93 94) 24,973 53,264 382 53,647
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2018 2019 12 31
3.7 4.9 2018 1.0 4.9
( )
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
45,991 44,968 36,495 35,780
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IFRS
ECL
2019 12 31
ECL
2018 12 31
(
( ) )
8,376 158
20 2,117 420
60 839 502
80 1,093 875
100 943 943
13,368 2,898
2019 12 31
(
( ) )
7,545 141
20 1,777 349
60 739 444
80 1,083 867
100 1,002 1,002
12,146 2,803
2018 12 31
(
( ) )
4,478 109



12
12
2019 12 31
2018 4,680
615
ECL
)
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20 800 157
60 479 290
90 225 202
100 298 298
6,280 1,056
2019 12 31
(
( )
5,452 102
20 1,428 239
60 621 353
90 258 224
100 371 364
8,130 1,282
4,692
2019 2018 12 31
)
2018 2019
4,761 4,680
2,008 1,653
(2,089) (1,641)
4,680 4,692
( )
2018
49,537 51,091 51,001 — _ _
45,991 52,625 2,602 19,604 25,061 5,358
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107,887 107,887 107,887 - - _
43,497 43,497 43,497 - _ _
216 241 112 40 82 7
247,128 255,341 205,189 19,644 25,143 5,365
« = )
2019
42,527 43,697 43,697 - - -
36,495 40,791 4,625 1,184 30,824 4,158
102,616 102,616 102,616 - - -
48,516 48,516 48,516 - - -
42,146 45,535 12,846 11,794 17,266 3,629
272,300 281,155 212,300 12,978 48,090 7,787
¢ 18
)
2018 2019
) )
3.2 49,347 2.5 29,022
3.3 45,991 3.1 36,495
95,338 65,517
4.2 190 3.8 13,505
190 13,505
95,528 79,022
99.8 82.9
2019 12 31 82.9 2018 12 31
99.8
)
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2019 12 31 78.0 (2018 12 31 :64.0 )
99.4 (2018 12 31 :99.4 )
18
36
2019 12 31 4,008
42,146 2018 12 31 2018 2019 12 31
14.4 11.2
37
/
C )
2018 54,558 49,742 77 - - 206 104,583
(5,021)  (4,073) (73)  (7,745) - (226)  (17,138)
_ _ 200 — — _ 200
_ 304 12 - - - 316
_ 18 _ _ _ _ 18
_ _ _ _ _ 20 20
_ _ _ 177 — _ 177
- - — 7,568 - - 7,568
2018 12 31 49,537 45,991 216 _ _ _ 95,744
- _ 45,648 _ _ _ 45,648
2019 49,537 45,991 45,864 - _ — 141,392
(7,010)  (9,782)  (10,699)  (9,072) 4,098 8)  (32,473)
_ _ 8,856 _ - - 8,856
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- - (589) - - - (589)
- - (2,900) . - - (2,900)
- 284 1,607 - - - 1,891
- 2 7 - - - 9
- - - - - 8 8
_ _ - 181 - - 181
- - _ 8,891 - - 8,891
2019 12 31 42,527 36,495 42,146 . 4,098 - 125,266
(i) 2019 12 31 4,098 2018 12 31
20
() 2019 12 31 32,473
945 90
1,500 25 405
2019 12 31
38
@
C = )
12 31
2017 2018 2019
O) 18,672 16,396 14,014
) 16,072 16,744 18,571
) 48 80 97
) 193 204 183
) 3,028 3,296 3,464
() 727 519 133
) 53 48 57
) 654 713 577
) - - 284
) - - 11
) 642 531 464
) 1,812 1,895 2,175
) 4,248 3,760 3,538
) 3,291 2,760 1,444
) 344 298 108
) 2,720 2,099 1,485
) 190 186 189
x ) - - 4,098
x ) - - 7

)
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)
) /
)
o)
)
) 2019 12 31
2017 2018 12 31
)
)
)
) 18
() CDMA CDMA
x )
/
C = )
12 31
2018 2019
1,327 1,188
24 27
1,035 1,233
2,386 2,448
20,983 19,531
2,171 6,069
145 162
- 389
8,584 6,621
37,000 23,300
68,883 56,072
37 i
/
18
2018 2019 12 31
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= )
12 31
2017 2018 2019
O) 15,389 16,063 10,543
O) - - 3,735
(1) - - 938
() 49 32 31
() 2019 12 31
2017 2018
12 31
)
/
= )
2018 2019
10 5
293 192
303 197
2,850 4,312
1,246 1,261
_ 1
- 24,474
4,096 30,048
/
2018 2019 12 31
©
C = )
12 31
2017 2018 2019
7,804 7,942 9,604
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2018 11 2,394
3.81
2020 11
33.3  66.7 100.0
2018 2019 12 31 2019 12 31
136 2018 30
2018 2019 12 31 30 166
M
2019 12 31
/
(
)
2001 13 542
2000 25 168
(
) 2001 11 22 43
2007 15 350
N ( 2004 10 15 60
2005 500
( 1,000,001
) 2006 10 -000,
2011 635
1984 01

155/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

( ) 2011 10
(
) 2012 16 500
( 3,723,500
) 2012 26 2123,
( ) 2012 10,500
IMUSIC 2013 250
( )
2006 16.15
2013 19 11
2017 11 30 5,000
2018 11 30 5,000
2019 5,000
51 65 78.74
70
42
ECL
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IFRS 17 2021

IAS 2022
IFRS 10 IAS 28

2018
IFRS 2020

1ASB 2019 12 31

®@

2020 10 2,000 2.90

) COVID-19

2020 COVID-19

45

2019 12 31
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Tabia of Contants
CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AN SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A% OF DECEMEBER 31, 2018 AND 2019
{Amounts in millions)

Decanbes 31, Died eriibid 31,

Mt et ]
[FEETT] [T
ASSETS
Current s
Cinb mnd cad pquivalmis 4 L6606 20.TH
Shont=term bank deposits %14 1528
Accoasts receivalde, ned 5 20475 21489
Conrect amsets & 475 am
Invesdories T 4532 1 AE0
Trepasmeiis mmd other cuiresl meets L 25.481% 2215
Fnmciad asvets o fuir value through prodid or los — a9
Incomie B reconierable 121 [ELH
Tatal rurrent s T30S RENE
Mam-curroni meeis
Preperty, plant md eqaipment, net ¥ 407,794 410004
Construgtion in progress 103 G514 P06
Right-ol-use asscts 1] - £1.54%
Lease prepayments 2,468 -
Cacodunil] 1 2922 29923
Intmngibdy amssts 13 14,161 1634%
Inlerests in nesociales 1L LA kLA L
Feity msimuments of fuir vadie through other comprehensive moome = 52 1458
Delermed fu seacts 15 6,544 TaTT
Other mesets 17 AN 4,687
Tutal nen-cmrrent avals SHITT 525849
Totnl assets i3, 382 _"".Df.'lﬂ
LIABILITIES AND ECATTY
Current Hahilithe
Shori-term dobd 15 A9537 41527
Currest porfion of botg-tems debd 5 1,139 1434
Agcousts pavable L] 107887 102516
Aceried expanaes med ofhier pavabiles Hr 43497 15516
Contrect linbdlities il 55,783 54385
Income fmc pogyahile LT 243
Currenl portion of finimce lease ohligaionsleane Babilities o 10 TR
Current portion of deferred revenues F i 373 35§
Total current Habdlite: 153,910 164,661
Mos-curromi Bahilliie
Leng-erm debt 15 A2 33051
Fmimcr |lewee obligarions leaee liskelitaes F 13 0577
Dreferved revenues n 154 1087
Drefermed i Eabiliees % 13138 1%.07%
Cleer mon-curment Habilities 04 627
‘Tocal nem curvent lshiliches [T 43430
Total linhilide 31583 HEN
Equity
Share capiral M 80,532 40032
Rmirves = 262,137 271578
Totsd equity stributable is sqeity holders of the Cempany 343,065 352500
Non-cnirollmg mloess L.oag 1530
Toral squity T T
Total linbiils mnd equity 663,352 T30

See accompanymg noles 1o consolidsted financial datcments.
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Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ERDED DECEMBER 31, 2087, 2018 AN 2009
{Amounts in millions, except per share datn)

¥ eat endrd December 10
Mewes _SOLT i ETTE
[T RAME RAE
Ot aling revenmes, 26 3220 ATTIE4 3757
Oper ating expenses
Drepreciation and mmortization (T4.951) (75493 (82145
Network operations and suppant 2T {103,969 (116063 (109,799
Selling, general and adminsnative (3843 (35422) (57361)
Personnel expenses 28 (fe0d3y (39736 (63.36T)
Othver operating expenses 29 (45610  (ATEETy (2779
Todal oper ating expenses (335,009 (HSAI0)  (346.664)
Oper aling Income 7.0 28,714 29,070
et finance costs 30 (I8 1708 (1638
Invesmend incame 147 it mn
Income from mvesineenls m associates -1 1104 1,573
Earnlngs before Incomme (ax 34,953 28148 27.034
Income tax n 618 (6EI0p (6323
Profit for the year 18,761 21,338 20,712
Other comprehensive Income Tor e year
Ttewns chat will nod be reclas fled swbsequently fo profit er oo
Chamge in Fair value of mvestments i exuity imstruments at fair valee through other
comprdensive income — (324) il
Dreferred tax on change m fur value of myestnaents m equity mstnamats e vihue through
oflver comprehensive Ncome — 31 (147)
(247} 457
Trenis theyt maay e swbaequently to profit of ke
Chimge in Fair value of avnlable-for-sale equity secusilies (i
Dreferred tax on dhange in fair value of availsble-for-sale equily seauritics (L1} — —
Exchange difference on translation of fimancial statemants of subsidianies culside mainkand China (250 154 102
Share of olher comprelensve income of’ associates 7 (] 2
(552) 147 1040
(iher comprehensive income for the year, ned of tax (552) [ER1] 557
Total comiprehenslve Incoms: for the year 18,205 21,243 21,265
Profit attribatable to
Equity holders of the Company IS617 L0 20507
Mon-controlling interests 14 128 195
Prodit For the year 18,76l 21,338 w0712
Total comprehensd ve fncome atiributable to
Equity holders of the Company 18,065 21.11% 21,074
Hon-controlling inferesis 144 128 195
Tostal comprehens)ve incomse for the vear 18,2 21,243 21,269
Baslc carmings per share A3 L] 026 025
Mumber of sharcs (in millkonsh a3 B0 80,531 R0.032

Hee mocomipanymg noles to consolidsted fimancial datements.
F-6
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Tabds of Contants
CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS EXDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2018 AND 2002

{Amounts in millions)
Atiribitable 1o sqalty haldess of she Company
General N
Share Capial  Share  Surplis rBk Oither  Exchange  Retaised cmtrolling Tousl
Motr  capial  frarcye  prembon  COSETES  DRAFTYE  fROATTR TR famings Tatal inbr ety Equity
HMEI  EMI  EMDI RMEB HMD HAE M RAH M RAH HA
Biadance ns of Jmsary 1, 2017 80932 17060 1046 TRELD — m (622} 133539 31537 an 3648
Predin for the vesr = = = — = -— = 18,617 18,617 144 18,761
Other compreheasve Bcome for the year — — - [293) (2390 — (552} — [552)
Tatal comprehensive moome for dee yemr = — — an = [2593) (2% 18617 18,068 144 18,209
Accpisition of the Fighth Acqsired Grosp 1~ — ] - - - — - | &7 - 5]
Meomisition of non-tontrolling ntenests A6 - a6 (194) (150}
Datritwation bo so-conirollmg infareds - — — - — - - - - {89} (&9}
Diwvadends 52 — —_ — — — — —_ {75300  (7.530) — {7.530)
Appropristions o siniatory swphis reserve 25 - - ] - - va (1685} = = =
Cithers - — - - - o] - — ] ~ i
Batmnce as of December 31, 2007 BOS3: 17026 106 TLINT - A {EEI) 13 J15 B6T B3l 36697
Chmnges m accountmg policie — — — 302 — — — 2673 2975 !I'} 200
Biadance ns of Jmeary 1, 2014 BOSIZ 17036 10HE T — 4H (EEl) 5506 328542 829 319,671
Prodis for the year — - = -— = = — L2 21.2E0 128 L1358
Other comgeehensive imcome for the year — — — — — (249) 134 — (3] — (93]
Total comprefvensive ncome for dve yenr (48] 154 T e 4 W 128 X1 .43
Disposal of mvestments in equity
mstromends o fair vidue throwgh other
comnprehen sive moome = —_ — = — 5] _ 5 — -
Thegroosal aif'n mbeickmy — — — — — — — — — 5 ]
Contrlaticn from non-contralling
infereds — GRO - - - — — —_— 680 el L] L]
Reducivon of copitnl by son-conimollmg
EEcres ) — - — — — — — — — (20} {20
Drutritmation b mon-controling idarests -— - = - = - —_ - - AT {177)
Dirvidends 2 — - - — - — — {7568 (7.568) — 17.568)
Approjristions 1o dawlory swphisreserve 25 = = = _L1z7s = = = L&) = = =
Baance as of December 51, 2008 BO9E2 17EODG 10 %e TEA™ 1k {TXTh O ASTATE  R4E. 060 LOS0 L
Chngges in accounting policy - — — _[MF _ — — — 1) ) (3) _{z8i3)
Bisdance ns of Jmvaary 1, 2019, oe redtated H#09F2 1TEDG D0TEE TRIF] —_ 160 (TITp 155481 30,629 LOZT  FH] 656
Profit for the year Lo - i - i = — T 20,517 195 0,7
(ther comprehensive moome for the yeur - - - - - 4455 Lird —_ 557 - 57
Tolal compreliensive moome for dhe year - — — —_ — P EL] 1 00T I0m 195 2269
Contribation from non-cmérolling
inferests . - LS00 1,50
Aciaisition of nos-controlling mrereses m— i am — — - — - 3 i #
Dmtrdtation bs son-tonirollng inlaets == — = e = — — = — (18131 (181}
Share af an associabe’s other chimges
FESErves = (305} - - - - = - (304) - (30%)
wdends 5 —_ — —_ — — - — {85391} (8891 — {8,591
Appropriations 1o davtory saplisroere 25 _— —-— = 1LELT — - — (LT} — — —
Appropriations (o gl risk reserve of
Finme Compmy 2% — - — — n — — [RE]] = - =
Balance ns of December 31, 2005 BO.SF: 17.504 10. 706 TR0 23 615 {615) 165273 3ELSED L1530 335040
See pocomipanymg noles to consolidated financial datements.
F-7
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Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ERDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2018 AND> 2019
{Amount= in millions)

Year msded Thecrinber 31,

Hears 2007 i ETTE
A RAME EME
et cash From operaling sctivites (@) 96502 99,298 112,600
Cash Nows nsed In investing activities
Capital expenditure (87,334) (83.E15) (82853}
Payments for bease prepayments | right-of-use assets ] {20y (300
Purchasze of investments (443) (328) 478
Froceeds from dispasal of property, plant snd equipment 2066 1.866 2514
Proceeds from disposal of lease prepayments | nght -of-use assels 1 45 113
Procecds from disposal of invesiments — 96 296
et cash inflow ( (omtflow) from digposal of arbsidianes 184 (1} -
Purchase of short-torm bk deposits (2815) 7,726 (5119)
Maturity of shon-temm bank deposits 3005 3.548 2621
Ml cush used In investing sciivitles [35.263) (85.954) (77.214
Cash Nows wsed In Mnuncing actbdtles
Repayments of principal of finance lease obligations | lease linbilitics 4] (T3 (10.69%
Procecds from bank: debt aned ofler loans 123,250 97820 103315
Fepanmients of bank debl and other loans (G9953) (106,523  (120,107)
Repayment of deferred consideration inrespedt of the Mobile Metwork Acquisition (61,7103 — —
Fayment of e soquisition price of the Eighth Acquisition (Note 1) - (87p —
Payment of devidends (7.530) (.65 (RE91)
Cash distritustions to non-comtrolling interests (85 {iT7 (181}
Paymeent for the acquisition of non-controlling imlenests (E1}] (105 (8
Contribulion from mon-controdling interests — &5 1,590
el deposits with Finance Comjpany ) - = 4,008
Increase in statutory reserve deposils placed by Finance Company (bp — — 403y
Reduction of capital by non-controlling intacds — {200 -
Peet cash used in Anancing actlvities (16,147 (16,383 {31,288
Met fdecrease) Dncrease In cush and cash equivalents (45908) (L9359 4098
Cash and cash equivalents ai beginning of year 617 19,410 16,666
Effect of changes in forelpn exchange rate -} R - S )
15410 16,6656 20,791

Cash and cash cquivalents at end of year

See accomparyimg noles to consolidated financial satements.
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Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ERDED DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2018 AND> 2019
{Amounts in millions)

{a) Recondliation of earnings before income fax to net cash from oper ating activities

Year mded Deormiber 31,
2017 2010 2019
[ AT 0]
Earnings before noome Lax 24,053 28148 27,034
Adpustments for:
Diepreciation and amortization 74,951 TR493  BR143
Empairment losses For fnancial wssets and olher items, net of reveral 2,036 2050 1,695
Impairment losses for long-lived asscis 1o — —
Write down of inventonies. nel of reversal 178 23 6l
Investment incoeme (147) {38) {300
Income fram mvestmails n asocales 877y (L104p  (1,573)
Interes income (425 {3063 (492}
Imerest expsise 1586 3,093 4,080
Nel foreign exchange o / (gain) 134 (79 41
et Toss on retirement and disposal of long-lived assets i.541 1,757 3710
Increase i accounis receivable (2,770 (L=E  (2801)
Dieimease i Conrac assels — 170 tl
Diecresse | (merease) in invenlonies g (5622} 1891
(Imcrease )/ decresse m prepayments and other aurent assels {2618 (1,449 1,134
(Imcnease)/ decrease n olher isscls (231} 0 414
Diecresse in accounls payable 4213 (A8} (1657)
Incrense in zocnaed expenses and clher payables 1232 5,842 614
Dieorease in contract liabililics — (G404 (1412}
Decrese in deforred revenucs (202} (138} {90}
Cash generabed Mrom operations 104,335 104,811 118978
Enterest recerved 433 306 474
Imteress paicl 3,707y (3094 (4,200)
Investment income received 63 EL | 133
Income tax paid {4,626) (2750 (2,785
el cash From operating activities D6501 09.X8  11XE00

) “Finaece Company” refers to China Telecom Group Finance Co., Lid., a subss@ary of the Company established oo Jamsary 8, 2019 providing
cupital and financial management sarvices 1o the member imils of China Telesommunacalions Corporation,

See accompanymg noles lo consolidated financial datements.
F-9

163/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminid amounts i millions, cxcept per stare deta and except otherwise statod)

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, ORCANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Principal activities

China Telecom Corpormeon Limted dike “Company”) md its subsidiaries (hercinadber, collecuvely referred 1o as the ~Group™ odfers o
comprehensive range of wircline and motile tebecommmications services including voice, Intemet, telecommumications nebwork resource md
cquipment services, information and spplication services snd other refated services. The Group provides wirelme telecommunicalions services and
relited services in Beijmg Muniapality, Shanglea Mimsopality, Guangdong Provinee, Jangsu Provnee, Zhejrang Provinee, Anhii Province, Fiijidn
Province, angxi Province, Guangxi Zhumg Autonomaous Region, Chongaging Municipality, Sidhan Province, Hubei Province, Huran Provinee,
Hainan Province, Guizhou Province, Yannan Province, Shasmi Provinee, Gansu Provinee, Qinghai Province, Mingxia Hui Autonomous Region amd
i Uveer Austanomeass Region of the People’s Regublic of Chana dthe “PRCT). The Groug alen provades mabile elecomamimcations snd relaled
services in the mainlavd Ching and Macan Specinl Adminisirative Region *Macau™) of the PRC. The Group also provides intemational
telecommuiricalions services, including network equiparent services, mbemational [ntemet sccess and tran=il, Intemet data center and mobile vistual
nework services in certain counlnics and regions of the Asa Pacific, Ewrope, Affrica, South America and North America. The operations of the Group in
the mainland China are ssbjed fo the aipervision by the PRC govemment and rebevant regulaions.

Crganization

As pan of the reorganization (the “Restrudaring ™) af China Telecommunicatsons Corporation, the Company was meorporated in the FRC on
Seplember 10, 2002, In comedion with the Restructiring. China Telecommunications Corpomtion transfierred to the Company the wireling
telecommunikicalions husmess and relaled aperations in Shanghai Municipality, Guamgdong Province, Jiangsu Province mnd Zhejiang Province logether
with the related assets and liabilities i consideraibon for 68,317 ordinary domestic shares of the Company. The dares isied to Chana
Telecommunicalions Corportion have a par valee of RAMB 100 ¢xch und represented the entire registered and issued share capital of the Compeany at
that date.

On Decensber 31, 2003, the Company acquired the entire equity interests in Anhui Telecom Company Limited, Fujian Telecom Company
Limited, Yiangxi Telecom Company Limited, Giangxi Telecom Company Limited, Chongging Tebeeom Compimy Limited mnd Sichn Telecom
Comipany Limited (oollectively the " Fird Acquired Groap™ ) and certain netwiork munagement and research and development facilities from Chima
Telecommunicalions Corporation for a tots] purdease price of BME46,000 (herenafter, refemed 1o as the “Firs Acqaisition™).

On June 30, 2004, the Comgpany acquired the entire equity interests in Hube Telecom Company Limited, Hunman Telecom Company Limited,
Hainan Telecom Compuny Limited, Guishou Telecom Company Limited, Yunnan Telecom Company Limited, Shamxi Tebecom Ceompany Limied,
Gansu Telecom Company Limited, Qinghai Telecom Company Limited, Ningxia Telecom Company Limited and Xinjiang Telecom Company Limited
(collectrvely the "Second Acquired Group™) from China Telecommunications Comprorslion for 2 lolal parchase price of RMB2 7,800 (hereinafter,
refierred to as the “Second Acquisition”).

On June 340, 2007, the Comgpany acquired the entire eqaity interests in China Telecom System Integration Co., Lid. (CTSI7), China Telecom
Gledal Lamited (*CT Global™) and Chana Telecan (Americaz) Comporaion CT Amercas”) (vollectively the “Third Accuired Groug”™ ) from China
Telecommunications Corporation for a total purdeese price of RMEB 1408 thereinafier. referred to xsthe * Third Acquisition™}.

Cn Jume 340, 2008, the Comgany acquired the enlire equity inferest in China Telecom Group Beijing Corporation ("Beijing Telecom™ or the
“Fourth Acquired Company™) from China Telecommunications Corporation for a tolad purdhase price of BMES 557 {hercinafier, referred to as the
“Foarth Acquisition™],

On Augudd 1, 200 and Decamber 1, 2001, the subsidimies of the Conyuny, E-airfing Pay Co., Ltd (“E-surfing Pay''} and E-surfing Media Co.,
Lad. ' E-surfing Media™ ), scquired the e-commerce business and video media business (collectively the "Fifth Acquired Group” ) from China
Telecommunicalions Corporation and ils subsidiaries for a toall purchase price of RAJ6] (heremafter, referred o as thee “Fifth Acquisition™). The
Companyy dispoeed the equity inferet i E-surfing Medsn to China Telecommunications Cosporation in 2013,
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminid amounts i millions, cxcept per stare deta and except otherwise statod)

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GRGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (contined)
Organieation {continoed)

Cn Apnl 30, 2012, the Company acquired the digital tunking usiness (the “Sixth Acquired Business™) from Besttone Holding Co., Lid.
{“Besttone Holding™), a subsidiary of China Telecommunicalions Corporalion, & a purdhase price of RMBAS (hereinafler, refiemred to as the * Sixih

Acquisiticer),

On Decamber 31, 2013, OT Glotml, a sabsiciary of the Company, acquared 10076 equaly imleded i China Telecom (Europee) Limsted (-CT
Europe™ or the “Seventh Acquired Company™), a wholly owned subsidiary of China Telecommmications Corporation, from Chima Telecommunications
Cerperstion for & tolal purchase price of RMB2 78 (hereinafter, refemed Lo s the “Seventh Acouisition™).

On October 31, 2017, the Company disposed of the 10086 equity imerest in Chengea Eestore Technology Co., Lid ¢ E-store™), a asbsddiary of the
Coamiprny, 10 Bestlone Helding, The firal consderatvon Tor the disposal of the equity intered m E-gtore amaounted 1o BMBIS |, among which RMB24%
was peceived on Movember 16, 2017 and the remaining balance of RMB2 was received in 2018,

Ciain on disposal of a subsidiary:
017
RMHB
Consideration for the disposal 251
et assets dgrased of (143}
Galn on disposal 108

The gain on dispomal of E-store has been included in investment income of the consolidated statement of comprehensve income.

et cash inflow From digposal of a subeideny:

EE]

EMB
Considerution recemved i cash and cash equivalents b
Les=s: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of {64}
et cash inflow Moom disposal of @ subsbilary 154
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, ORGANIEATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (contimsed)
Organieation (comtinmed)

In December 301 7, the Company scpared the satellite commumications business (lhe “Satcom Busimess"} from China Telecom Satellite
Commumication Co., Lid, a wholly owned aubsidiary of China Telecommunications Corporation, s & purchase price of RAMBETO. In the same month,
E-surfimg Fay nequired o 100% inferest in Shasred Zhonghe Honglal Insrance Agent Limited {airently known o Oringe Insuneice Agent Limited
("Orange In=urance”™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Shaanxi Communications Services Company Limited (" Shanxi Comservice”, 2 company
ultimately held by China Telecommunications Corporation ), from Shasnd Comservice, 3t a purchase price of RMBI 7. The acquisitions of the Satcom
Business and Ornge Insurance (collectively referred to as the “Eighth Acquired Group™) s two separte ranssdions, which e collecively refemed
ti s the * Eighth Acquisition” . The tolal final considemtion of the Eighth Acquisition was paid by June 30, 2018

Hereinafter, the First Acquired Group, the Second Acquired Group. the Third Acquired Group, the Fourth Acquined Companny, the Fifth Acquired
Croug, the Sicth Acquired Business, the Seventh Acquired Company and the Eighth Acquired Group are colledively refermed to as the “Acquired
Grougs™,

Basls of presentation
Sace the Group and the Am.llr:d Ciroups are under common contrel of Chana Tebeoommunicitions Corporation, the Group's acquastions of the
Acquired Groups have been nec d fior s combingtion of entities wmber common coatrol in & manne amilar to 2 pooling-of-inerests, Accordingly,

the assets and lisbilities of these enlities have been accoanted for at historical amounts and the consolidated financial statements of the Group prior o
the sequisitions are combined with the financial statemenis of the Acquired Groups. The considerations for the scquisition of the Acquired Groups are
accounied for & an equity trasaction in the consolidmed satement of chimges i eguily.

Merger with subsktlaries

Pursiant (o the reselulion passed by the Compmy's shareholders ot an Extraordinary General Mectimg held on February 25, 2008, the Company
emered imto menger agreements with each of the following subsidiaries: Shanghai Telecom Company Limited, Guangdong Telecom Company Limited
Tiargsi Telecom Compainy Limited, Zhejng Telecom Company Lisnited, Anhid Telecoan Company Limited, Fujiain Telecom Comjpainy Limfted,
Jiangxi Telecom Company Limited, Gumgxi Telecom Company Limated, Chongging Telecom Comgeany Limited, Sechuan Telecom Company Lmmited,
Hubei Telecom Company Limited, Hunan Telecom Company Limited, Hainan Telecom Company Limited, Guizhoo Telecom Company Limited,
Yunnan Telecom Comparry Limdled, Shamxi Telecom Company Limited, Gans Telecom Company Limited, Qmehal Telecom Company Limstec,
Wingxin Teleoom Company Limited snd Xmjiang Telecom Company Limited. T sddition, the Compmy entered mbo merger agreements with Beijing
Telecom on July 1. 2008, Pursuant to these merger agreements, the Company merged with these subsidiaries and the assels, liabilities and business
operations of these subsidiagies were transtfared to the Compamny's branches m the respective regims.
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I, APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (*IFRSa™) AND
INTERPRETATION

Inthe cument year, the Group has applied. for the fird tme. the following pew and smendments Lo IFRSs md interprelation issued by the
Intermations] Accounling Standards Board (~1ASE") that are mandatorily effective for the aurrent year:

IFRS 16, “Leaser™
* TFRIC 23, “Uhcerdainty over Ineame Tav Treatmemts™
» Amenidments to TFRS 9. " Prepaymens Featwees winh Neganive Compensation ™
+ Amendments 1o TAS 19, “Plan Amendmenr, Ciortaifment or Sertemsen ™
* Ameandmais o [ A5 28, “ Lavgg=termi Tteress i A vsocfate s aond Soinr Ventuores™
= Amendments to [FRSs, el Inpwevessenss i IRRS Sty 200 5-2007 Oyede ™

Except fior IFRS 16, “Leaws” ("IFRS 147), the application of the gbove amendments (o IFR.Ss md imerpretation has had no matenial effect on the
Croug’s consolideded financial salements.

The Growgr has nol yel applicd any new and revised stmcand that i not et effective for tee camant vear (Note 43),

IFRS 16, “Leases™

The Growgs hus applied IFRS 16 for the first time i the current yese, IFRS 16 superseded 1AS 17, “Laases ™ ("TAS 177, and the related
interpretations.
Definnition of a bease

The Grouge spplics the definition of a lease in sccordance with the requirements sel ou i IFRS 16 in assessing whether 8 conlrad comtains a
lexse. Upon application of new defmition of @ lease, cortain operating lease under 1AS 17 dos not fall into the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 25
portion of the asset under such operating lease srangement i= nol an idemified aased.

As a bessee

The Groag has applied IFRS 16 rerospectively with tee curmlative ¢ffect recognized 2t the date of mftial application, kmary 1, 2019,

As of Janimy 1, 2010, the Group recognized sddisonal lease libilithes mvd measured right-of-ase aseets 22 the camying smounls a2 if IFRS 16 had
been applicd since commencamnent dates, bt discoumied using the meremental borrowing rabes of the relevant lessees at the date of mitin] application by

applying [FRLS 14 transition provisions, Any cumulative ffect at the date of initial apglication is recognized in the opening retamed profits and
compraralive information has not been restated.

When applying the modificd retrospedive spproach under IFRS 16 8 transition, the Group applied the followimg practic] expedicnts to all bese
arangements, on bease-by-lexse basis, 1o the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:
i elected not o recogize nght-ofuse assels md bease Habilities for Jeases with Bease torm enels wathin 12 months of the date of mstial
application;
il spplied a single dscount rfe to o pertfalie of leases with 3 amiler remaining terms for smilar class of underlying assets in simalar

coonamic environment, Specifically, dscount rate for certain beases of telecommunications towers, buildings, equipment ard other assets
in mainland Ching was determined on a portfolio basis and

1in, wiged hindsght based on fects and circumstances as of date of mitial application m determinimng the lease term for the Group's leases with
extension awd lerminalion cglions
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(Al Renminid amounts i millions, cxcept per stare deta and except otherwise statod)

I APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCLAL REPORTING STANDARDS (*IFRS5") AND

INTERPRETATION feontinued)
IFHS 16, “Leaswes™ (continued)
As a bessee (oontinped )

When recognizing the lease lisbilities for operating lezses, the Group has applied incremental bomowing rates of the relevant lessees at the date of

inittal application. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied 13 3.6%

Operating lexse commilments disclosed as of Decensber 31, 2018

Less: Recogmilion ecengplion—shortderm leascs
BRecognition exemplion—low-valie assels

Variable lexse payments nol depending on an index of 3 rale
Reagsezament on definition of a lease and change m allocation basis

beetwesn bease and non-lease components

Leess; Tolal future inlered expenses

Lease labnlitics relating to operating leases recomized upon application

of IFRS 16

Add: Finance lease obligations recognized & of December 31, 2008

Lease liabilities as of Januery 1, 3019

Analyred as
Crisrenl
Mon-omrent

The carrying smount of right-of aise ascets as of Jmoary 1, 2009 comprises the Tollowing:

Right-of-use xeseis relaling to operating leases recognized upon

application of [FRS 16
Rechaliod from lease prepayments

Tobe:

Mt dwsary 1, 2013

FILB
65,805
(684}
{85)
{12,268)

o
49,919
@271

45,648

216
45 26

10, 260
35,604

Hobe Right s[-1san ashets

EAhdR

43,956
{m) 21.568
63,534

{ap  Upon application of IFRS 16, lease prepayments amounting to RAB 21 568 were rechssified to nght-of-use assets on the date of initial

application.

A a bessor

I accordance with e transstional provisions in IFRS 16, the Croup is wot required to make any adjustment on iranstion for leases m which the
Grougs 15 lessor bat scoount Tor these beases in accordange with IFRS 16 from the date of initinl applcation md compamtive information has not bem

restated.

Effective on January 1, 2009, the Group has applicd IFRS 15, “Revenue from Comracrs with Cestomers ™ ("IFRS 157} to allocale constderation in
the contrad o each lease and non-lease components. The damge in allocation basis has had po material impact on ibe consolidated financial galements

af the Group for the qavent vear
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I APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (*IFRSs™) AND
INTERPRETATION (continued)
IFRS 16, “Leases™ (oontimsd)
Interests in associales
‘The net effects arising from the mitial applicabion of IFRS 16 resulied in a decrease in the camying amounts of inferests m sssociates of RAMBIG3
with corresponding adjustrments 1o retained profits.
The fallowing sdjustments were made 1o the amouns recognized in the comsolidaled statement of fimaneial position al farmiary 1, 2019, Line items
that were ned affected bry the changes have not bean inchaded.

CRETYIng Smmnts

prrvisushy CREFY g i s
eparted at wnder [FRS 16 at
Free Trecembes 31, 2018 Adljusinsemis January 1, 2019
EMEB EME EME
MNon-current assels
Right-of -use xssets - 65,524 65524
Lexse prepayeents (a) 21,568 (21.565) —
Inferests in assocules 38051 (2630 37,788
Dreferred bax assets 6,544 676 T.220
Calver assels o Sy (TA6) 0
Current assels
Prepayments mc other current assels 234619 (5180 3,101
Current lEabilkies
Agcounis payable 107,887 {10} 107,787
Curent portson of lease lisbdlstics - 10,260 10,260
Currenl portion of finance lease obligations 101 AL —
Mom-current Hxbibithes
Lezse labilities - 35,604 35,604
Finance lsase ohligations 115 (41 B3] —
Equity
Toal ecuaty attributable 1o equity halders of the Company 30D 2,800 H0629
MNon-contrelling interess 130 [£3] 1027
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICT
{a)  Basisof preparation

The socompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by 1ASE. The consolidated financial
datements of the Group hive bean prepared on 3 goirg concem bisis, These consalidated financial salenvaits were spproved and authorized by the
Board of Directors on March 24, 20240,

The consolidated finnncial statements are prepared on the hidorical cost basis as modified by the revaluation of certain financial instruments
menzured at fair vahee (Mate 3.

‘The: preparation of consolidated finmncial statenvents in conformity with [FRSs requires management 1o meke judgments. edimates and
asammptions that affect the application of policies amd the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent sssets and liabilities at
the s of the conselidated fimancial dalements md the reported amoants of revenises md exponses curmg the reporting paned. The etimates and
associaled assumplions wre based on historical experience and wariows other Faciors that maragement believes are reasonable under the circumstances,
the reailis of which fomm the basis of making the judements aboul camrying vahues of sssets end lisbilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from ihose estimates.

The etmaates and underlying asammplions wre reviewed on an cngong basis. Revigons 1o sccouling sstmntes we recogmized in the penod in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affect= only that period or in the pericd of the revision and futare periods if the revision affeds both cumrent
amll fature periods.

Judgments made by management in ithe applicaizon of [FR.Ss that have significant effect on the consolidated firancial Aateneents and major
spurrees of estmion uncertainty are disoussed m Nole 42,

(b} Basisof conselidation
The consolidated financial statomeonts comprise the Company and its absidiarics amd the Group’s miorests in msockles.

A subsicliary s an entity controlled by the Company. When fulfilling the following conditions, tlve Company has coniral over an enbity: {z) has
power over the mvestee, (b has exposire, or rights, to varible refums from its invelvament with the investee, and () has the ability lo use its power
over the investee to affect the amoundt of the investor's refurms.

When asscesing whether the Company has power over that emtity, onby substantive rights (held by the Company and other pariies) are considered.

‘The financial reaslts of subsadiaries are included in the consolidated financial dataments from the date that control commences until the date that
comtrol cewoes, awd the profit aitributable 1o non-controllng miereds i separstely presented on the face of the consolidated gatoment of comprehensive
mcoaree a5 an allocation of the profit o loss for the year between the non-controlling inerests and the equity holders of the Company. Nom-controlling
interests represent the equity in subsidiaries nol attribulable diredly or indiredly 1o the Company. For each business combination, other than business
combanaticn wnder commen control, the Group measeres the non-comrolling imerests a2 the proporticnate shire, of the acquiston date, of fair value of
the subsadiary's nef identifiable assets. Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial posstion within equity mnd consolidued sidement of changes in equity, separstely from the equity of the Company‘s equity holders. Changes
in the Group's nberest= in a subsidiary that do not resull in a loss of control are accounted for as equity ranssctions, whereby adjustments are made to
the smaimnts of contralling and nen-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative mterests, i no sdpstmmts are
masde 1o goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized. When the Group loses control of 8 stbsidiary, o is sccounted for 85 a disposal of the entire inlerest
in that subsidiary, with & resulting gain of loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any imerest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control
15 losd i recognized 2 fkr value and dis amount ks reganded as the fair value on it recognition of'a financial aszet or, when appropriate, the cost on
milial recognition of an imvedment in an asociale or a joinl venbire,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

(B} Basisof consolidation feontimued)

An associate is an entity, not being a asbsidiary, m whidh the Group exercses signiffcant influence, but not coniral, over #s managonenl.
Significant infleence i tee pawer (o participate in the finanaal and eperatmg policy decisions of the investos but 15 not contral or Joint controd over
these polices

An invesmient in an associste is scoomnled for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and is mitially recorded al cod,
adjusted for any eccess of e Group®s share of the acquasilion-date fair values of the investee"s nd identifiable assets over the cost of the imvestmeant (if
any’) after reassessment. Thereafter, the mvestment is adjisted for the Group”s equity share of the pest-ncquisaion changes in the associate’s el assels
amld any impairment loss relatimg 1o the mvestment. When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an assodale. it is acooanted for s a
disgpasal of the entire mierest im thal investee, wilh a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profi or loss. Any inlerest retaimed in that former investee
it the date when sgnificent mituence is lost i recognized at Fasr valse and this amoeant i regarded a5 the fair vabue on initial recognition of a Ninancial
sl

All significant intercompany balances and transactions and urrealized gains anising from mtercompany transsctions are ¢lminated om
consolidstion. Unrealized gains arising from transuctiona with associabes are dimmated to the extent of the CGroups interest in the entity. Unrealized
losses are elaiminated i the same way as inrealized gains, bul only to the extent that there is no evidence of Impaiment.

{c)  Forelgn currenches

The sccorpanyng consoludated fnancial dalements are presented in Remmbi (RNE"). The functional curency of the Company and s
aibsidsaries in mainland China is BEMB. The functional currency of the Group's foreizn operations is the corrency af’ the primary ecenomic enviranment
inwhich the foreign operations operate. Transactions denominated in cusrencies othier than the functionsl aurency during the year are translated into the
fisnetional cusrency at the applicable rates of exchange prevailmg on (e ranssction datcs. Forcign currancy moncary asses and lrallitics are transtated
b the fundional curency using the gphcable exchange rides u the ad of the reposting perod. The resailing exchange dilfaraces, olher than those
capitalized as comstruction in progress (Note 3{e)l are recognized = income of expense in profit or los. For the periods presented, no exchange
differerces were capitalized.

When preparing the Group's consolidued linmcial @atements, the reailis of operations of e Group's forelgn operations are irassdated imo RME
al weerage rale prevailing uring the year, Assets and lisbilsties of the Group®s foreign operilions are trunskaled into RMB al the foreign exchange mles
ruling at the end of the reponing period. The reauliing exchange differences are recognized in other comprehansive income and acaumulated separately
in equaty i the exchange reserve,

() Progerty, plant and squipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded 8 cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and mspainment bosses (Mote 3¢h)). The cost
of ik assdl compriscs its purchase price, any direcly amibutable costs of bringing the asset (o working condition mnd location for 15 mtended wse and
the cost of borowed funds used curing the penods of construction. Expenditure incurred after the assel has been pul info operation, mchiding cost of
replacing part of such an item, is capitalized only when it inoreases the future economic benefits embodied in the tem of property. plant and equipment
and thee cost can be nvcasired reliably, All other cxpendstiere is expased ax il is incurred.

Gitins or losses ansing from rosrancent o desposal of propenty, plant and equipment are determaned as the difference bevween the ne disposal
proesds und the camyng smount of the respective ssset and are recognized us income or expense m the profit or loss on the date of disposl.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

{d}  FProperty, plant and equipment (contlmeed )

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of each amse over its estimated useful life on 3 draight-line basis, after laking into account k8
estimited resiciial vale, as follows:

Trspeecifile lives

rrraf Y iy Erean
Buildmgs and improvemenls Emiﬁ years
Teleeommannicatsons network plant and equapenent 5o 10 years
Fumiture, fixiure, motor vehicles md other equipment 5 to 10 years

Where prrts of an e of propenty, plant and equpment have different usefiol lives, the cogt of the itern i allocaled on a nesonsble basis betwesn
the paris and cach part is deprecisied separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its ressdunl value are reviewed annuslly.

{E)  Comstruction in progress

Constrisction in progress represents buildings, telecormmunications network: plant and equipment and ather equipment and intangible assets under
comstrution and pendmg nstallation, and is dated ot cost bess impairment losses (Note 3ik)). Thee cost of n ilem comprises direet coss of condrudion,
capitalization of mterest charge. and foreign exchange differences on related boeroweed fimds to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest charges during the periods of construction. Cspitalization of these cods ocases and the construction in progress is ransfered to property, plam
vl expuiperent and imtangible asscs when the asset is altantially ready for its intanded use,

o depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

N Goodwill

Coodwill represents the excess of the cost over the Group's interest in the fair value of the pet &ssets scquired in the CDMA busines (as defined
i Node 12} accuastion,

Goodwill 55 stated #t cost less any accumulated impasmient loszes. Goodwill is allocated to @sh-generding units and is tested mmally for
impagmeent {Mote 3(hik. On disposal of a cash genersting unit during the year, any attritutable amount of the goodwill is inchaded in the calculation of
the profil or loss on digposal.
gy Intongible assets

The Group's imangible azsets are primanly software,

Soltwire that is not an integral part of any tangible assets, is necorded ol cost fess subsequent sccumulated smontization and impasment losses
{Mole 3h)). Amortization of software i mainky calculsled on a draight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 5 years,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

{h)  lmpairiment of goodwill and Tong lived ssets

The carrying amourts of the Group's long-lived assets, inchuding property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assals, inkangible assets with finite
ugefial lives, constriction i progress aad contrat cods mcleded in ather ssets wwe reviewed perisdically 1o detennime swhether tiere i any indication of
impamment. These assels are tested For impaimment whenever events or changes in ciraimstances indicate that their recorded carmying amounts may not
bie recoverable. For goodwill, the impasment testing is performed anmually at each vesr end.

Before the Groug recosnizes an impasmment loss for assets capatalized as contrad cosis under IFRS 15, the Group assesses and recognizes any
impmEmTent loss on other assds related 1o the rebevant conirscts in accerdance with spplicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if gy, for sssets
capitalized as conirad costs is recognized 1o the extent the camying amounts exceeds the remaming amount of conskderation that the Group expeds Lo
receive in exchange for related goods or services less the costs which relate directly to providing those goods or services that have nol been recognized
as expenses. The assets capitalized as contract costs ane then included in the carying smount of the cash-generating unit 1o which they befong for the
purpose of evaluating myprinmenl of thal cish-genaratmg unit,

The recoverable amourt of an assel or cash-generating unil is the greaver of its fur value less coxs of disposal and vadue inuse. The recoverable
amount of & tmgible and mn intangible asset is etimated individually. When an asset does nol generate cash flows largely independent of those from
alher assels, the recorverable smount is determined for the smalledt group of asgcs thal generates cash inflows independently (ie. a cash-generat ing
it} I dedermmmg the valise i e, expected fitore cash flows generated by the ass are discouted Lo thear present valive using a pre-lax discoumt
rate that reflects amrent nardet assesanents of time valee of money and the risks specific Lo the asset for which the edtimates of fisthure cacsh flows have
niol boen adjusted The goodwill arising from a business combination, for the pupose of mpainment teting, is dllocated o cash-peneraling units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combanation,

An dmpmarment foss is recognized o the cerying swmsant of @ st or its casdi-generting unil exceeds its estimated recoverable amount
Impairment loss is recognized as an expense in profit or loss. Impairment loss recognized in respect of cash-generaling units is allocated find to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocabed to the units and then to reduce the carying amoumis of the oflver asses im the unit {group of unis) on a
pris Fata basis.

The Groug ssses=es at the end of eadh reporting pervod whether there is amy indication that an impairment loss recognized for &n asset m prior
years ey oo lorger exis. An impaimment loss i reversed if there s been @ fivvorable change m the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A subseaquent merease in the recoverable amount of an asset, when the circumstances snd ¢vents that led 1o the write-down cease to exisd. is
recoghized a3 @0 incomee in profit or loss. The reversal is redoeed by the ameunt that would have been recomized & depreciation mnd amortization had
thee wride=down nol occumred. An impainment Boss m respect of goodwall i net reversed. For the years presented, no reversal of impairment loss was
recognized in profil or boss,

Iy  Inveniories

Inventionies conast of nraterials md supplees wsed m mambaing the tebecommunicalions netwark and goods for resale, Invenlaries are valised al
cost using the specific identification method or the weighted average codt method, bess a provision for ebsolescence.

Invenfonies are stabed al the bower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business bess the etimated costs of completion, the estimated costs to make Uhe sale and the relabed tax expenses,
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminid amounts i millions, cxeept per e deta ad except otherwise statod)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

{1 Financial indruments

Effective Janusry 1, 2008, the Group applied IFRS 9, “Finaociad fngraents ™ ("IFRS %) nd the related consequential amendments (o other
IFRS2, IFRS 9 inlroduces new requirements For (1) the clasafication and measurement of financial agsets and financial habilities, (25 expected credit
logees (~ECL") for finmncial azscts and other ilems (For example, conlract assets) and (33} general hedge sccoumting.

‘The: Grougr gpplied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set cal in [FRS %, i.e. applied the classfication and mexsurement
requirements (including impainment under ECL meodel) retrospectively o mstruments that have not been derecognized as of Jamary 1, 2014 (date of
initial appication) mad ned applicd the requiresats lo mstruments thal have alrendy been derecogmized as of ooy |, 2008, The difforance batween
currying amounts as of December 31, 2017 and the carrying anvounts as of January 1. 2008 are recognized in and reduced the opening reserves as of
Janiery 1, 2008 by RMBT16, without restaling comparative informalion. Accordingly, cerfain comparative information may mol be comparable as
comparalive information was prepared under TAS 3%, = Fivecfal frstrmments: Recogniston and Meamremenr™

Fmnancial assels snd fnancial lisbilities are recognized whan the Group becomes a party to the contraciual provissons of the instnement. All
regular way purchases or sales of Tinmcial assets are recognioed amd derecognized on a sctibement date bagis. Regulir way purcliases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial a=sets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or comeention in the market place.

Fmancial assets and financial lisbilitics are initially messuned at fair vahse excepd for sccounts receivable arising from contrads with customers
which are initially mexsured m socordance with IFRS 15, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of isae of financial assets and
fanancial limbilitics, other than financal wssets o financial labilities ¢ fir vahie through profit or loss {FVTPLbire added 1o or deducted from the fair
value of the financial sssets or financial lesbilities, 35 appropriste, on initial recognition. Transsction costs diredly stinbutable (o the scquisition of
financial assets of financial liabilities @ FYTPL are recognized immediately in profin or loss.

The effective imeres method i3 a mahod of calaulating the amortized cost of a fmancial asd or Onancal lsbality and of allocating mterest
moome and mbered expense over the relevand period. The effective mterest rale is the ne that exacily discounts estimated futune cash receipts and
payments {inclading all fees and poimts paid or received that form an mtegral part of the effective interest rale. traesaction costs and other premiums or
discomis through the expected life of the Mnancal assel or financial lability, or, where appropriaie, a shoner period, to the met carrying amoun on
initial recognition

Fiaocl .

Classfication and mubsegquem mearunemen of Snancial aeets (upen application of IFRS 9
{1 Fmancial assels measured subsecquently 3t amod ized cost

Fmancial assets tha meet the following conditions are subsequently messred ol smontized cost:

* the financial assd s held within a business model whose objedive is 1o colled contrecual cash flows, and
. e contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash Aows that are solely paymends of principal and interest on the principal amount
outsanmdng.

Interest ncome is recopnized using the effedive interest method for financial assets measred subsequently & smonized cost. Inlerest income is
caleubuted by applying the effective interest rte 1o the gross carrying amount of a fmancial pssel, exeopd for fmancial asscts that have subsequenly
become aredit-impaired (see below). For financial assels that have subsequently become credit-impaired. inlerest income s recognized by apphying the
effective imerest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from the mext reporting period. If the orodit risk on the credit-impaired financial

instnement improves s that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interedt rate to the
gross carrying amount of the fimancial asset from the beginning of the reponting period following e detarmination that e asset 12 no longer credits

mmpared

(i} Equity insruments desiprated a= of fair value through other comprebensive income FVTOCT)

A the date of initial application of IFRS 9/ initiad recognition of a fimancial asset, the Group may imevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fiair value of an equily investment in OCT, and sccamulate in ofher reserves, if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recopnized by an acauirer in u business combination o whidh IFRS 3, “Brriness Combinations ™ spplies. These equity insinuments ase nol
shjed to impaimment assessment. The cumalative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments. and will be
transferred bo retained camings.
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)
) Financial indruments {comtinged)
i e
Clasafeation ad subsequend meazuremeni of inancial aseis (upon application of IFRS 9 {coniimed)
(it Equity instruments designated as of fair value through other comprehensive income {*FVTOCT™) {continued)
Dividend from these investments in equily instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Oroup's right 1o receive the dividends iz

established, unless the dividends clearly represent o recovery of prart of the cogt of the mvesment, Dividenids are mchided in the “mvestment meome™
line item i profit or loss.

(1) Famancial asels ot FVTPL
Fmancial assets that do nol meet the criteria for being measured al amerized cost or FVTOCT or designated as FVTOCT ane measured at FVTPL.

Finacial assels ol FVTPL are measured at fair value al the ed of each reposting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognized in profit o
loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profil or loss inchudes any dovidend or interest eamed o the financal ssset and is incheded in the “invedment
mooae” Fing iterm,

Imipeairmend of foancial assers and sther items miyect fo fograinment aosesame (upon agdicaiion of [FRS @)

‘The: Groug performes impaimient assessment under ECL mode] on financial assets (mchading accoants receivable and fimancial assets included in
prepayments and other aurent ssef=) mnd other ilems {(contrecl assets) which are subject to impainment under [FRS . The amount of ECL is updated
cach reporting date o reflect changes in oredit risk: since indtial recognitbon.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will resubt from all possible default evenis over the expeded life of the relevant instnument. In contrast, 12.
menth ECL ¢12m ECL™) represents the postion of Tifetime ECL that is expected 1o reaull from definsl events thit are possible within 12 months adber
the reporting date. Assceaments are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for Factors that are specific to the debitors,
gemeral economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions af the reposting date &5 well asthe forocast of fisure comBitions.

The Groags slways recognizes lifdime ECL for accoums receivabile and contradt assets. The ECL on these sssels e assessed mdividually for
debbors with significant balanees or credil-mipared delbtors, and colledively usmg a provision malrix with appropriate groupmgs bascd on shared credit
risk cham<teristics. nature of services provided as well as type of customers, such as receivable from telephone and Internel ashscribers and from
Ve S CISLOMGTs.

For all other instruments, the Group mesares the boss allowanoce equal 1o 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant mereise in aredil
rigk sinee initial recognition. the Group recognizes lifetime BCL. The sssesament of whether lifetime ECL should be recognized is based on significant
mereases in the [kelibood or rid of 3 defaull ccourring since initial recognition,

(0 Significant inecresse in credit nigk

In assessing whether the aredit sk has increased significantly since initial recogmition, the Group compares the nisk of a defaukt occurming on the
financial ingrument as of the reporting date with the nisk of a default ocourring on the financial ingmment as of the date of initial recognition. In
miaking this sssessment. the Group considers both quantitative md qualitative infoemation that is rexsonable and auppartable, including historical
expenience and forward-looking infommation that is wvailable without unchie cod or effon

In particular, the following mformation is taken into sccou when assessng whether credil risk has incressed significamly:

+ failure to make payments of principal or imeres on their contractually due dates;
* an actual of expeded significant delerioration in & financial instniment”s extemal or infermsal aredit ratng (if svailable);
b an actual or expeded significant deberioration in the operaling resulls of the debior: and

= gxading of Forecd dhinges in the tedmalogical, misket, economic of legal envirenment thal have a sgnificiit adverse effed on llie
diebtor's ability to meet its chligation to the Group.
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES teontimesd}
) Financial indruments {comtinged)
Fiinsi e
Impezirmeni of fnmcial axsets and other lems sebject fo fnpainment assezament {upon apgicaiton of IFRS ) foontinmed
iy Definition of default
For internal credit risk mamagement, the Group considers an event of defill ocors when information developed intemadly or obtamed from
ﬂqc-;-ﬂulma:“ﬁ mdicates that the debtor is unliely to pay its areditors, mcluding the Group, in full {withot taking into account amy collaterals held by
) Credit-impaired finmncial ascts
A fiancial assd 12 aredil-impaiied When one of more events thal have o detrmental sipad on the edmated futire cish Mows of tiat fnancal
asset have ooourred. Evidence that a financial assel 15 credit-impaired inchades obsarvable data about the following evemts:
+  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the bomower:;
* & breach of contract, sudh as & defimll or past dae event;

* the lenderis) of the borrower, for econemic of contractual sessons relating to the bomower's financial diTicully, having grimted to the
borrower 3 concession(s) that the lenderi =) would not ellerwise consider,

it i becoming probable Bt the borrower will enter bankmuptey of olbier financial recrganization; or
. the disappearance of an active market for that financial assd becase of financial difficubies.

iy Write-aff podicy

The Growgs writes off 2 linancial assel when there is information mdicating thal the courterpanty is in severe fmancial dfTiaalty and there is no
readistsc prosped of recovery, for example, when the counterprty has bem placed under liquadation or has entered mio bmkrupacy procecdings. A
write-off condtilutes & derecognition ¢vend. Financial assets writlen off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
pro<echires, taking into account legal sdvice where appropriate. Any subsequent recoveries are recognized i profia or loss.

(v)  Measuremend and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is 2 fundion of the probability of defanlt, loss given defadt (ie. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
expoaire al defilt, The assessment of the probability of defsul and loss given defiault i based oa the hisorical data adjusted by forward-lookig
miormation,

Generally. the ECL is the difference between all contractunl cash flows thal are due to the Growp in accordence with the contraa and all the cash
flows that the Group exped s to receive, discounted al the effective interest rate determined st iitial recognition.

Where ECL is mieasured on a collective basis or culer for cases where evidence at the individual indrmment level may not be availsble, the
fanancial insdnuments are grouped on the followang basis:

. Mature of finandal instruments {i e the Group's socounts receivable and financial assels mcluded i prepayments and other current assets
wre cach asbeed i a separale groupl

- Past-chie status;
Mature, size and induestry of debtors; amd
* External credil rutings wheere svalable.
The grouping i regubarly reviewesd by managenent (o avame the constituents of each group continue 1o share similur credil risk chamdendics,
‘The Groap recognizes an impairment gain of loss in profit o loss for all Gnancial insdruments messined ol amortized cost by aduging their

carrying amount, with the exceplicn of accounts receivable and other receivables where the cosresponding adpustment 15 recognized through o loss
allowance account.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contineed}
) Financial indruments {comtinged)
B ke
Clasa feation ol mubsequend meaturemen of financial asets (prior io Janwary §, 2008

The Group's fmancial assets e classified into the fallowing specified categories: AFS financial assets snd loans @nd receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and puspese of the fimancial assets mid is determimed 31 the time of initinl recognition. All reguler wiry purchases or
sales of the finmcial assets are recognined and derecogniced on a setilement dite basis, Regular way purdhases or sales are purchises o sales of
financial assets (ha require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulalion or convention in the marketplace,

1] AFE _.Enmuﬂ'nf arsely

Investments in available-for-sale listed equity secunties are camied 2t fair value with any change in fair valoe being recognized in other
comiprehmsve income and scammlaed separately in equity. For myvesments in available-for-zale lied equity seasrities, a significant or prolonged
declme i the fair value of thet mvestment below W5 cost 15 considered 1o be objective evidence of mpaimment, When thess imvestments are
derecognized or impaired, the comulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive incomee is recognized in profit or loss. Investments
in uniied equity securiiies that do not have a quoted market price in 2n active market and whose fair valoe cannot be reliably measured are stated at
cost e impmarment losses (see below

fii)  Lewrs aned receivaldes

Accoimls recervable and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and thereafter staled atl amortized cod using the effedive miered
method, less allowance For doubtful debts {see below) unless the effed of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they sre dated & cost less
allewance for doubiful deins.

Iryxgirmens of finaacial aesets (prior fo Joowary 1, 20151

Accounts and other receivables and invesiments in equity securities camied al cost are reviewed a1 the end of each reponimg pericd to determine
whether there is objective evidmee of impainnent. Oljective evidence of mupsumment includes cbeervalde data that comes 1o the attention of the Grougs
abos one or more of the following loss events:

+ syl financial diffaculty of the debtor or isaser;
. & breach of contract, such &s a defauli or delinguency in interest or principal pryments;
b it becoming probable that the debitor will enter bankruptcy or dther financial reorganization; and
= agalficant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal mviremment that have an sbverse effect on the delblor/izarer,
The impasrment |oss for accounts and other recervables is measired o the difference between the et 's camryving wman md the etimated fature

cash flows, discounted al the financial as=et’s original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is matenal. and is recognized as @ expense
in profit or loss,

The ueprerment lozs for investments in equity secirities carried ol cost s measred as the difference between the assel’s carying amount ad the
estmted future cash flows. discounted at the current maskiet rate oFretum for a smiler financial aseet where the effed of discouming is matenial, and is
recognized as an experse m profil o loss,

Impairment kosses for sccounts and olher receivables sre reversed through profil or loss if in 2 subsequent peniod the amomt of the impairment
losses decreases. Impairment losses for equity seauritics carried a1 cost are nof reversed.
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3 BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (continped)
) Financial indruments {comtinged)
Fiisi e
Derecogrition of finamcial aseis
The Growg darecosnizes a firncial ssset caly when the contretual rights 1o the cash flows froim the asset expire, of wiien it transfers tee fiscial
st wndd substamtiolly all the risks and rewands of ewnership off the asset 1o another antiny.

O dlerecognition of a financeal sswe measured 3t amortized cost, the difference between the s=et’s carrying amount md the sum of the
comsideration received and receivable is recognized m profit or loss.

On derecogmition of =1 mvesment in equiy indrmment whidh the Group has elected on il recognition | initial application 10 measre ol
FVTOC upon application of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously acoumulated m other reserves is not reclassified to profit or loss, bt is
transfemed to retained camings.

On defecognition of @ AFS Onascaal s, the ammilative gam of boss previously sccuiiibsted i other feserves s reclasafied te peafit of o

£ ial abilt i
Clasd fication as deld or ayuily

Dt andd equity instnaments are classified as cither financial Habilities or as equity m sccordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangernents and the definitions of a financial bnbility and an equity instrument.

FBepuity tnsriments

An equity instrment is any contract thal evidences & residual mterest in the assets of w entity after deducting all of 15 fiabulities, Equaty
insinements issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds received. net of dired issue costs.

Finewacicl fabilinte s

All fimancaal liabilities are subsequently measured st amodized cost usang the effedive interest method.

Fmangcial lisbilities inchuding short-term and long-term debt. sccounts payable, and financeal liabilities incloded in aconsed expenses und other
payables are aubsequently measured st amortized cost, using the effective interest method,

CHffsetiing a fnancial axsed and o fnancial Gabilin
A financial assed and a Cinancial lability are offset and the nel smount presented in e gateament of financial position when, and only when, the

CGroug currently has o legally enforcentde right te set ofF the recognized amounts. sl mtends either 1o seltle on anet basis, o to realize the aset and
seltle the lisbility smmubancmesly.

(k) Cashand cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hanvd and time deposits with original maturities of three months or less when purchased.
Cush oquivalonts are dated ot codt, which spproximates fair value. None of the Groups cash and cash equivalents is restrected as to withdrawal.
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

I Revenue from conteact with aistoaers {upon application of TFRS 15)

Effective Janusry 1, 2008, the Group applied IFRS 135 and the related Amendments. IFRS 15 superseded [AS 18, "Revenme ™, TAS 11,
“Comsruction Comracts” and the related imerpretations. The Groug applied 1FRS 15 retrospectively with the cumubative effect of initially spplying this
sandard recognized at the date of mitial application, Janwary 1. 2008, Any &fference at the date of initial application was recognized in and increased
the opening reserves as of Jauary 1, 2008 by RMB3,691 and comparative information was not restated. Furthermore, in accondanee with the ransition
provisions m [FRS 15, the Group has eleded 1o apply the sandard relrospedively only 1o the comracts that are not completed st howary 1, 20018
Accordingly, cortain comparative informalion may nol be comparable as comparative information was prepared under IAS 18, “'Revernue ™ and the
related inlerpretations.

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognizes revenise when (or as) a paformance obligation i stisfied. i e, when “control” of the goods of sarvices
underlying the particular performance obligation is transfermmed to the customer.

A performance obdieation repeesents a good of service (or 8 bundle of goods of services) thal is distinc or a series of distind goods or services
that e substantially the e

Control 1% irmeferned over time and revenue i recognized over time by reference Lo the progyess towards complete salizfdion of the relevant
performance obligation if’ cne of the follewing criferia is met:

= the cudome smillancoudy receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Graup perfonms.
. the Group's performance creabes and enhamces an assel thid the qadomer controls a3 the Groups performs; of

. the Group's performance does nod areate an asset with an aliamative wse to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date,

As sinch, revenies from contracls with customeers of el ecommunicalions sanvices, includng vaiee, Intemel, information and application and
telecommumications netwerd: resource and equipment services, resale of mobile services (IMVMO) and repair and mamtenance of equipment are
generally recognized over time during which the services are provided to customers.

Calverwise, revenue is recognized sl @ point i time when the costomer obiaims conirol of the distind good or serviee. As such, revenies from sales
of equigmuent are recognize at a point in time when the equipment is delivered to the customers and when the control over the equipment have been
transferred to the cugomers.

A conract assel represents the Group's right te consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Groisp has transferred te 8 custonmer bl
the righl is comditioned on the Group's fislure perfonmance. A contrad assed is rwesfared (o accounls receivable when the right becomes unconditional.
A coftract assel is assessed for Empairment in accordance with 1FES 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional nght to
consideration, i.e. conly the passage of time 35 requires] before payment of thl consideratzon is due.

A contract Bability represents the Group's obligation te transfer goods o servioes to a custamer for which the Group has received consideration
{or an smounl of considerstvon is dug) from the arstomer. When the Group receives an sdvance payment before the performance obligation is satisfied,
this will give rise to & contradt lisbility, until the operating reveniees recognized on the relevam contract exceed the amount of the advance payment.

A condract assdl and a contrad lability relsting o the ssme contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis,

it wilh munltiple perfonmmee obligations (inchiding alloction af iransaction pric
For contracts tat conlzin more than one performance obligaticns, soch #s the Group's direct sabes of promotional packages bundling tenminal

equipment, ¢ mobile handseis, and the tebecommunications services, the Group allocates the transaction price (o eady performance obligation on a
relatrve stand-alone oclling price bags

The dand-alone sellmg price of the distimg good of servace underlying each perfomance obligntion 1= detarmmed 21 contract incepdion, It
represents the price al which the Group would sl 3 promised good or service scparately to 8 customer. If a2 sand-slone selling price is not directly
abservable, the Groap edimates il usng appropriate technicues sudh that the transaction price ullimatey allocated 1o sy performance obligation
reflects the mmeant of conadertion to which the Group expects o be antitled m exchange for irmstaming the promased goods o services o the
QEstomer.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
I Revenoe from contract with custommers (upon application of TFRS 15) foontimed)

Chver e revenae recopmation: megarenien! of progress [ownnds coy Al et o ah A DT LT cE e 'E ..|I

The progress lowards complete sitisfaction of a performance obligation is generally mesaired based on catput methodd, which is 10 recognize
revenue on the basis of diredd mexamement= of the value of the goods or services Iransferred to the castomer to dabe relative to the remaming goods ar
services promised under the contract.

Principal versus agem

When ancther pasty 15 involved i providing goods or services 1o a customer, the Group determines whetler the natune of 88 promise is a
performance obiigation te provide the specified goods or services Hself (1.2 the Group i= & principal or te arrange for these goods or servicesto be
provided by the other panty (i.e. the Group is an szent).

‘The Groagp is a principal if it controls the specified goosd or service before that good or service is transferred 1o 8 customer.

The Groagy is @ agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the prosision of the specified good or service by another paty. In this case,
the Group does not contral the specified good or service provided by mnother panty befiare that good or service i trmsforred to the custonaer, When the
Group acts & an agenl, it recognizes revenue in the smount of any fee or commission to which il expeds to be entitled in exchange for smanging for the
specified goods or services 1o be provided by the other party,

idcrati "

Consideration payable (o 8 customer includes cash amaounis that the Group pays, or expeds o my, (o the astomer, and also includes aredil or
olher iems that can be applied szaind amounts owed to the Group. The Group aceounted for uch consideration payable to & customer as 4 reduction of
the transaction price amd, therefore, of revenee unless the paymend to the cusdomer i i exdhange for a distinet good or service that ihe cagomer
transfers to the Group mnd the fair vadue of the good or service received from the customer can be reasonably edimated

Certain absidies payable to third party agent incurred by the Group m respect of customer contracts, which will be ultimately enjoyed by end
austornerd, and other subsidies incurred by the Group directly payable to ils customens, are qualified as consideration payable to a austomer and
accaurded for = i reduction of operating revemses.

Incremental costs af obtaming u contract are those costs thul the Group inaurs 1o ablain o comract with 2 customer that i would ot have mourmed
ifthe contract had not been obtained

Certain commissions incurred by the Group paid or payatde to third pany agenis, whose selling sctivities resulied in customers enlermg into sale
agreements for the Group’s ielecommunications service. are qualified as inaremental costs. The Group recognizes asch costs &s an assel. incleded in
olber assels, i B expeets (o recover these costs, The assel 5o recognized ks subsequently smonized 1o profil or loss on 8 sygematic bass that s
comsisient with the tramsfer to the cugomer of the goods or services Lo which the assds relate.

The Groap spplics the priclical expedient of expensing all incremiental costs to obtamn a contract if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortized to profit or loss within one year.
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al Renminld amounts i millions, cxcept per siare deta and excat otherwise statod)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

M Revenoe from contract with customers fupon application of TFRS 15) (continised)
Lot to i) 3 contragt

When the Groisp meurs oosts 1o fubfil o contrct, it fird pstesses whether these costs qualify for recognilion as w1 et in Lemns of other relevimt
standards. failing which il recognizes an asset for these costs enly if they meet all of the following criteria:

= the costs rebate directly bo @ conlrst of 1o an anticgpated contrad that the Groip can speafically identify;

. e costs penerabe of emhance resouraes of Uee Group that will be used in satesfiying (or m continuing lo satisfy) performance obligations m
the future; and

. e costs are expected Lo be recovered.

The asset 2o recogmized b= ibsegquently amortized 1o profil or loss on 2 sydemmtic bagis that 1z conssdent with the transfer 1o (he customer of the
goonds or services 1o which the asects relute. The asset is abjec) Lo impaimment review,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

(o) Revenue recognition (prior to January 1, 2008)
Before the application of IFRS 15, the revenie recognition methods of the Group are as follows:

Revenues from telecommunications services, including voice. Infernet, mftrmation and application and telecommmmications network
ressirrce amd equipment services, resale of mobile services (M WNO) and repair and maimenmee of equipment are recognized over time
during which the services e provided 1o cusomers.

Revenue Fram information snd applecation services in which no third panty service providers are involved, axch as aaller display and
Intemet dalz center serviees, are presented on a gross basis, Reveniscs from all ather informetion amd application services ase presentesd on
cither gross or net basis based on the asses=ment of each individual arangement with third parties. The following factors indicate that the
Group is acting as pravapal in the arrangements with third paties:

The Group is primuaraly responsible for providing the spplicutions or services desred by customers, und tlkies responsabalaty for fubfithment
of ardered applications or services. including the scceptability of the applications or services ordered or purchased by customers;

The Group takes tite of the wvemtory of the applications before they are ordered by cutomers,

The Group has risks and rewards of oswnership, such as nsks of loss for collection from cushomvers after applications or services ane
provided o cstomos

Thee Oroup has latitude in etablishing selling prices with cudomers,

The Group can modify the applications or perform pant of the services;

The Group has discretion in selectng sapphiers uwsed to falfill m order, and

Thee Groarp defermines the pature, type, charadenisics, or specifications of the applicaiions or senvices.

1f majerity of the mdicators of risks and responsibililies exist in the armmngements with third parties, the Grouge is 2oiing & a principal and
have expoaire to the significant risks and rewands assoceatod with the randering of services or the sale of applications, and revenues for
these services are recognized on a gross basis, [F majority of the indicators of ridis awd responsibilities do nol exid. in the amingemants
with third parties, the Group is acling as an agent, and revenues for these services are recognized on a met basis.

Sale al equiginent 1 recoginized o delivery of B eqiperel to aistorvers and when the sienificant nsks and rewards of ownasdip snd
il have been mnsferred to the customens,

Thie Grougr offers promational packages, which myvolve the bundled sales af termmal equipmient, §.e. mobile handsets, and telecommunications
services, o austoneers. The tolal contract consideration of a promational package is allocsted to revenues generated from the provision of
telecammuiicalions services and the sales of torminal equepment usang he residual method Under the residual method, the tolal contradt consideration
al'the armungement is dlocaed as follows: the undelivered component, which is the provision of tefecommmunications: services, is measured al fair valoe,
amvd the remainder of the contract considerstion is allocated to the delivered component, which is the sales of terminal equipment. The Group recognizes
revenues generated from the delivery and sales of the terminal equipeent whien the title of the terminal equiprent is passed 1o the customers whereas
revenises generated from the provision af lelecommamications services are recognieéd based upoen the actunl usage of aich services,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)
n)  Lewss
Definliion of a bease (upon application of [FES 16 in accordance with transtions in note 2)

A coniract is, of conlaing,  lease if e contract conveys tie right 1o coatrol the use of an idemtified assa for a period of time in exclenze for
consideration,

The Growp sssesses whether a contrad is or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 @ incegtion or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed undess the terms and conditions of the contradt are subsequently changed.

‘The Group as a lessee {upon applicstion of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in note 3)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasombly expects that the effects
o Uie Nivscial datements woitld nol &iTer miterally from mdividial leases withm the peatfolia,

I il 1601 [Es]

For a comiract that containg a lease comgonent and one or more additiona] lexse or von-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contrad 1o cach lease comypent on the bases of the relative stand-alose prece of the lese component and the ageregate stavd-alone price of the
non-lesse components

M 2 08 IO -NRINE SERarts

‘The: Group spplics the short-tenm lease recognition exemption to leases of buil dings, equipment and other a=sets that have a lease term of 12
manths of less from the commeencement date and do not contain & purchese optice. 1 also applics the recognition exemplion for lease of bow.valie
msets Lense payments on shorl-lenn leases mnd leases of low-walue asscls are recognieed as expenses on o draight-lme basis over the lease lom,

Bight-of-yae sesels

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
= theamomt of the initial meamensent of te lease halxlny;
. any lease payments made a1 of before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
¥ amy initial dired costs incurred by the lessee, and

. an estimate of costs to be magmed by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying assels, restoring the site on which it is located
or restaning the underlying asse to the condition redqaired by the temms and conditions of the |,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES teontimeed}
n)  Lewses (rontimed)
The Group us a lessee {upon application of IFRS 16 in accordimnce with transitions in note ) (contined)
Right-ofiase sty (comtmued)
rtlrl?igﬂ-otf—use assels are measured 3 cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impaimyent losses, mnd adjuded for any remeasurement of lease
labilities.

Right-ofiuse assets in which the Group 15 ressonably cenain (o obtain ownership of the underbying lcased assets at the end of the lease term 5
deprecinted from commencement date 1o the end of the weeful life. Otherwise, right-of-wse sssets are deprecinted on @ draight-line bass over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the fease tam.

The Grougs presents right-of-use assets #s a separsie line tam on the consolidated stabement of financial position.

| Jighili
Al the commencemienl date of a lease, the Grougr recognizes and measures the [ease Habality ol the present vahie of lease payments that are unpaid
al that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental bomrowing rate af the lease commencement date if the
nterest rate implicit in ihe bease iz not readily determinable.
The lesse payments inchude:
* Tixed payments (incledng in-substance fixed payments) less any lese meentives receivable
. warigble lease payments that depend on an index or 3 mle;
- the exercise price of a purchase option rersonably cortam to be exercised by the Group and
- payiments of pemaltics for terminating & lease, if e lease term reflects the Group exercising s option o teminate the loxse.
Vamiable lexse paymenis that depend on an index of 2 rale ase initially mexsired uang the index or rale 22 of the coneencement date. Variable

Tease paviments thil o nal depend on an index or a rate are net mchuded m the messmament of lease liabilitics and right-of-use assets, wed are
recognized as expense in the period on which the event o condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest socretion and lease paymenta

The: Grougr remeasures bease hinbilities (imd makes 1 comesgponding adustment bo the related nght-of-use asses) whenever:

= the lesse term has changed o there is a change in the asesment of exercase of @ purchase aption, in which case the refated lease liataly
is remeasmed by discounting the revised lease myments using g revised discount rabe a1 the date of xssesament

* the lease payments chinge due to chonges in market rental rates followimg o market rent review, in which cises the related lease labiliny 12
remeasired by discounting the revised lease pomyments usng the initial discount rule.

F+3

184/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminld amounts i millions, cxcept per siare deta and excat otherwise statod)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)
n)  Lewses (oontimed)
The Group us a lessee {upon application of IFRS 16 in accordimnce with transitions in note ) (contined)
Lewie modilications:
The Groap sccounls for a base modificalion as a separale lease if!
. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to wse ane or more underhying assets; and

. the consideration for the lewses increases by an snounl commensmate with e sand-aleae price for the increase in scope and any
apyroprinte adjusdments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumsances of the particalar contrad,

For a bease modification that is ot scoeunted for us o segrrate lease, the Group remensures the bease lability based on the lease term of the
madified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discoun! rate at the effedive date of the medification.

The Grougr sccounis for the remeasurement of lease lisbilities by making comesponding adjusiments to the relevan right-of-use asset. When the
enanlified conlract conlais o lease compancnt aad one of more acdiborel lexse of fon- lease companents, Bie Crop allocales the coiskderation in the
maodified contract Lo each lease component on the bass of the relative gand-alone price of the lease component md the aggregate stnd-alone price off
the non-lease components.

Thie Groug 3 bessoe (prior to Juuary 1, 2015)

Assels scquired under finsnce leases are mitially recorded st amounts equivalent 1o the lower of the fuir valee of the leased sssets o the inception
afihe bese or the present value of the minimum bese payments (compuled wsng the rate of interest implicit m the lease). The net presem value of the
fisture minirmuen lease payments is recorded cormespondingly as a finmce lease obligation.

Where the Groage has the night to use the assels under operaling leases, payments made under the leases are darged to profit or loss in equal
in=daliments over the acoounting persocks covered by the leass tenn, eccept where an altemative basis i more representative of the pattem of benefits 1o
bie derived from the besed assel. Lease incentives received are recognized i profit or loss as an integral part of the egregate net besse payments nade.
Cemtingent rentals are churged to profit or loss in the accounting peried in which they are incurred,

Lz progrymonts represand laned wse rights mad, Lamd use rights are imitinlly camied o1 codt or deemed cost and then darrged to profit o loss ana
straight-line basis over the respective pertods of the rights which range from 20 yeass to 70 years.

The Groip as @ lessor
tassificai f
Lenses for whach the Group i= a lessor are dlassified as finance or operaing leases. Whenever the terms of the lease imansfer asbstantially all the
risks and rewards incidental 1o ovmership of an underlying assef 1o the lessee, the contradt is dassified as a finance lease. All other leases are dassified
s operalimg lowses.
Amoumnis due from lessees inder Nmance leases are recognized as receivables al commencement e al 1 el Lo ned m m the
leases, measured using the interest rale implicit in the respective leazes. Initial direct costs (other thm those incumed by manufacherer or dealer lessors)

are inchuded in the initial measurement of the net mvestments in the leases. Interest income is allocated (o accounting periods so &5 to reflect & constanl
periodic rate of reham on the Groug's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)
n)  Lewses (oontimed)
The Group as & lessar (continued)

Classification and mensranent of lases (oomtinued

Fental income from operaling leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-ling basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
inasred m nezolising wwd arramging @ operating lease are added 10 the camryving amount of the leased asset, and adh costs are recognized o= an
expensz on 3 strught-line bags over the leise term. Upon applicaion of [FRS 16 on Jmuary 1, 2009, vansble lease poyvments for operating beases that
depend on am index or a rate are estimated and included m the total lease payments to be recomized on a straight-line basis over the lexse term. Vaniable
lexse payeents that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized s income when they arise.

This Groip as a lessor (ispen apglicalion of IFRS 16 m sccordance with ranstions in mole 2}

ion of consideration L i
When a contrsdt inchuces both leases and non-lease components, the Group applics IFRS 12 to allocate consideration in & contract to lease and
non-bease components. Nen-lease compencnis are separated from lease compencnt on the bass of teir relative stand-alone selling prices.

Befimdahls rental depocits
Refimcable rental deposats received are accounted umder IFRS 9, “Financlad Ingramends” and initially mexared at fur value. Adjustiments to fair
value al initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees,

Sulleree

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it acommis for the head lease and the sublexse as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is chessified as a
finanee of optrating lease by referonce 1o the right-ofsuse asset ansing from the head lease, rol with reference to the inderlying assel.

Lezs: modifisation
The Groug sccounts for o modificition to an cpermmg lease as s new bewse fram the effective date of the modification, considermg any prepasl of
accrued lease payments relating to the original bease as part of the lesse payments for the new lease,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

(o) MNel Mnance cosls
Het finance costs comprise intercd income on bank: deposits, intered costs on bormowings, inferest expense on lease liabilities and foreien
exchange gains and loses. Interes income frons bank deposils is recognized as it sceries using the elfective nterest methocl.

Interest gosts inaarred in comedtion with berrowings are calarlated wsng the effective inmerest methosd aed are expnsed as mairred, excepl 1o the
exlent that they are capitalized 45 beimg directly stiritustable (o the construdtion of an assel which necessarily takes a substantial period of time o get
reacly for its intended use.

() Reseurch und devlopment expens:

Research and development expenditure 15 expensed as incurred, For the yesrs ended December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2009, research ancd
development related personnel expenses amounted 1o RABL L, RMBL32T and RMEBL950, and rescarch and development relied depreciation
amounted to EMB10E, RMELLO md RMBI4L, regeectively. In sddition, other resewrch and development expene for the vewrs ended December 31,
2007, 2018 and 2019 was RMBIOSS, BMB1 341 and RAB2 105, respectively.

() Employee benefits
The Group's contributions to defined contribution retirement plans administered by the PRC government and defined contribution retirement
plans administered by indepadent extenal parties are recognized in profit or boss as incurred. Further nfosmation 15 sl o in Nole 39,

Comprensation cxparse i regred of the share appreciation rights grmted is scaued g o charge to the profit or less over the upplicable vesting
perind tmsed on the far value of the share appreciation nights. The liability of the acoued compensation expense is re-mesamed te fair valee al the end
af each reporting period with the effed of changes in the fair value of the liability charged or credited to profit or hoss. Fusther details of the Groop's
dhare agpreciion rights scwne wre set cal in Mote 40,

{r)  Government granis
The Groop's govermment grants are mamly related to the govermment loans with below-mirket nee of mterest,

Govemnment grmis shall only be recogmized untzl there is reasonable axsorance that:
11 the Group will comply with all the condtions atiaching 1o e and
() the grants will be received

Govermment grats thal compensate oxponses mosred are recognized in the consolidated statement of comge chensive income m the same periods
imwhich the expenses are inoamed.

Govemment grints relaling to assels are recognized in deferred revenue and are aredited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome
a3 raight-line basss over the expeded lives of the related asseds,

{sh  Prosdslons and contingent labilitkes

A provision is recognized in the consalidated smtament of finmecinl pestion when the Group has 2 legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past evenl, md it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amoaint of the obligation. Where the time value of money is matersal, provisions are stated af the present value of the expenditure expected o seiile the
aldigation,

Where it is not probwble that mn cutllow af ccomomic benefits wall be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed g a confingent lisbility, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose exidence will anly be

comfimmed by the ccamrance or non-oooumence of one of more fmure evends, are also dsclosed s contingent labilities unless the probability of coflow
of economic benefits is remote,

F-33

187/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminld amounts i millions, cxcept per siare deta and excat otherwise statod)

3 BHGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continwed}
1) Value-sdded tax (<VAT™)

Under current PRC tax rules and resulations, catput VAT rate for basic telecommunications services (inchuding voice commimication, lese or
sale of netwark reseairees) is %6 since April |, 2019, or 10% between May 1, 2088 and April 1, 2019, or 11% before May 1, 2008, while the cutput
VAT rate for value-added telecommunications services (incloding Intemet access services, short and mulimedia mesagng services, transmisston mnd
application service of electromic data and information) ks 6%, and the output VAT for sales of telecommunications temuinals and equipment is 1 3% simce
Apnil 1, 2009, 16% baween May 1, 2008 and April 1, 2009, or 1 7% before My 1, 2018, Inpat VAT rate depencls on the type of services recerved and
the ssscts purchased as well 2s the VAT rale applicable 1o a specific mdustry, and ranges from 3500 13% ance Apnil 1, 2009, or 3% 10 1 6% betwean
May 1, 2012 and April 1, 2009, or 6o 17% before May 1, 2018

Cutpit VAT is excluded from operating revenues while input VAT, which is incurred a5 a result of the Company's receipt of services snd
purdsazes of telecommunications equipment and materiaks, iz excluded from operating expenses or the original cost of equipment purchased and can be
natted againg the cutped VAT, armving al the nal amount of VAT recoverable or payable, As the VAT obligations are bome by branches and
aubsidiaries of the Company. inpal and cutput VAT are set off ol brmnches and subsidianes levels, and the net ameoant of VAT recoverable or payable of
branches and subsidiaries are not offset at the consolidation level. Such net amount of VAT recoverable or payable is recorded i the line ibem of
prepayments and wler current s s and acensed expenses and other pavables, respectively on the face of conselichted gatements of fmancial position,

() Income tax

Income tax for the yer comgrises current Lo and movernent in defermed tax asects amd labilitics, Income t2x 15 recognized m prodil or Joss except
to the extent thal it relabes to items recomized in other comprehensive income. or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of 1ax are
recognized in other comprehiensive imeome or disectly in equity respectively. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the tacable income for the year,
usEng lax rates enactesd or sulstantively enacted @ the end of the repontimg prervod, ancd @y adjusment 1o tax payable in resgrcct ol previous years,
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method. providing for all temporary differences betw een the cemying mmoumts of assels and
liabilities for financiad reporting parposes and their tax bases. The amount of defemred tax is calculsied on the basis of the enacted or subsiantively
enadted fux rules il are expected o apply in the pericd when the asset is realized or the liability i seitled, The dffect on defered ta of vy chinges in
tax rates 15 charged or credited to profil or loss, excg for the effed of a change m Eax rate on the carying enount of deferred tax assets and liabilitics
which were previously recognized in other comprehen=ive income, in auch case the effect of a change in 1ax rte is also recogniced im ather
comprehensive income.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only o the extent thal i is probable that fulure taxable meome will be available against which the assel can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reducesd to the extent that it 12 no langes probable that ihe related tax baefit will be realized,

Delermed tax liabilities are generally recogmized for all txable temporsy differences. Deferred tax libilities are recognized for taxble tempogary
differences associated with investments in subsidianes and sssociates, excepl where the Group is able Lo control the reversal of the tempaorary difference
amdl it i2 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable fisture.

For the parposes of measuring defaved tax for leasing transections i whidh the Group recosnizes the feht-ofise assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Groap first determunes whether the tax deductons are atirbuatable to the nght-of-use nesets or the bease liabiliies,

The tax deductions of the Group's lexsing trunsactions e aitribuitatde to the lexse |ibilities, The Group spplies 1AS 12, “fuwome Taves”
requiremeils bo the leasing ramszction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilitics are assessed on a et basis.
Exgess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal postion of lease lisbilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

() Diidends
Davidenck are recognized as a lialality in the period in whidh they are declased
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contimped)

(wh  Related parties
(a} A person, of a close member of that person's family, is related to the Group if that person:
{1} has control or jont contrel over the Group,
fiik  hos agnificant ikfloence over the Group; or
{iid) 15 a member of the key management personncl of the Group or the Group's parat.
(by  Amentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applics:

{11 The entity and the Group e members of the same groap (which mems that each pwrent, subsidiary and fellow subsaciary is related
fo e others);

Qiip  The entily is an associale or joind venlure of the Growp (or an associale of jaint ventire of a member ol 8 group of which the Groap
1% 3 memberk of the Groug i an aewciste or joant ventre of the entity (or an associale o jomt vertore of 3 member of o group of
whidh the entity is a member},

(i) The entity and the Group are joinl ventures of the same third party;

(v} The entity i= a joint venture of a third entity and tee Group is an assoaate of the third emity; or the Group 15 a join venture of a third
entity amd the entity = an asociate of the third entity;

(v} The entity i controlled of jointly controlled by a person identified i (a)

{vi} A perscn identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or i a member of the key management personnel of the entity
{or of & pasent of the ntity).

Close memibers of Use Family of a person sre those Tenily members who may be expected 1o infToence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

() Segmental reporting

An operating segment is 8 component of @ enlity that engages im business acdtivities from which revemies are esmed and expenses are inoered,
andd is identified on the basis of the internal financial reporis thai are regularly reviewed by the dhief operating decision maker in order to allocate
respirce and assess performance of the segment. For the pertods presented, mansgement has determined that the Group has one operating segment as
the Group is only engaged i the integrated tebecommuni cutions business, The Group”s assets [octed outside mainlind Ching and oparating revonies
derived fram activilies oufside mainland China are less than 1086 of the Group”s assets and operating revemues, respectively. No geographical wea
information has been presented as sisch amcoamt i2 immsaterial. Mo single external qustomer scoounts for 10% or more of the Group®s operating revenues.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Diecembar 31,

Wiz Iy
RME TR

Cash s bank and in hand 14,937 20,006

Time deposts with onginal matursty within three meaths 1.729 785
16,666 20,791
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5 ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE, NET
Accounts recervible, nal, are analvred 2 follows:

Thierd panrties

China Telecom Growap

China Tewer (Se delimition in Note 14)

Other el ommasni cations opert ond in te PRC

Liws: ABovwmnoe for oredii bosses

BrcrmBer 31
Hols 20k =019

RME  RME

1308 AR

iy 3T 1,188
10 ]

210 550

25135 26,181
R

20408 i

Mode:

(i China Telecommunications Corporation together with its subsidiaries other than the Group are refermed to as = China Tebecom Growp”.
Az of hnwry 1, 2008, the gross camymg amoants of accounts receivable from contracts with customers amounted o RAMB2S. 342
Aging analysis of sccounts receivable from telephone and Internd subserivers based on tee balling dates i= as folbows:

Currest, within | month
1 ta 3 months

A to 12 montha

Mlore thon 12 months

Less: Allowance for eredii bosses

Tecembier A1,
“HEiw 0w
R BA
HITH TS
207 | M)
1532 1,422

M3 100
13368 12,046
(ZA%E) (L.E03)
10470 9,343

Agimg amalysis of scommts receivibile from other telecommunications eperiors and entorprize customers based on dates of rendering of services

is =5 follows:

Curresd, within 1 psonih
1 to 3 mmonths

4 ta 12 montha

Nleww thim 1T momibs

Less: Allowance for oredii bosses

Decembier 1.

L] 2018
EME RME
g 4
A0 I
ol R
its 2602
VLTST - 14,088
{0.TEE) [1,8R9)
10005 12146

As af December 31, 2008 and 2019, mcluded in the net balance of the Group's accounts receivable e deblors with agerezate camying amount of

HME 2 503 and BAMEBL 936 respectively, which are past due as of the reporting date.
‘The following table mmmanzes the changes in allowsnce for doubifisl debgsin 2017:

Impairm ent losses for dosbiful debas
Accotnts receivable wrglon of
At end of year

Dretails of impairment assessment of acoounts receivable for the year ended Decembser 31, 2018 and 200 % are set out in note 35,
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6,  CONTRACT ASSETS

Third pantics A% 447
China Telecom Group -
ATE 474

‘The Groag's contracts for infomsation and application services inchude payment schedules which require stage payments over the service period
ance cortain specificd mikestones are reached. The Group classalics these contract asscls as curranl becmse the Group expects to realize them in its
normal operaling cycle

T INVENTORIES
December 31,
e e
RMEB  RME
Materiaks amul upplics 1002 597
Goods for resale igN 1303
4831 2
8% PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Dircrmiber 31
-—l—l—lq.-l—
N—‘l AN 2%
EMB B
Amoumnts due from China Telecom Group 1035 1.133
Asmeoumts dhee from China Tower (See defmiteon in Mot 14) I 192
Amvounts dise from other telecommunications aperabors in the PROC i3 A5
Prepayments in conmection wilh construction work and equipment purchases 1752 3,352
Prrpm.upmm and deposils 3,628 2093
Valse-mdded tax recaverable RA18 BA03
Coher receivables (i} 6560 5.2
33619 23219

Tole:
{1y Ceher receivables as of December 31, 2018 inchude the unpaid remaining considerztion of the contribution from moa-comtrolling interest of
subsidiary of the Group amounting to RMBS0, which was received in Jannary 2019,
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9, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT, NET

Tl Fuininare,
rean e ad e Fiximne, mmabor
g and network plant velilcies and
b prove- and wtheer
crwml Hﬂ!m‘ Tioaal
[0 HALH M ME
Ceest/ Dioemed cost:
Balince ot niary 1, W18 101,332 42473 0585 974,390
Additions 713 512 306 1,530
Transfemred from construdtion in progress 1,454 71,704 1.721 T4.879
Reetirement and dispossl {R& {55.4827) (1636} {62.318)
Reclassification 15973 (485 582
Halance al December 31, 2008 102,541 554,382 31558 SR 481
Addditions 554 274 277 1.10%
fronm constniction in progress 2060 74157 1464 77861
Reetirerment and digpossl (751) {62,560 (2419 {65,730}
Heclussification (3 (536) 575 -
Balance al December 31, 2009 104,365 265,717 31,635 1,001,717
Accurmulabed depreciation and impairmenl:
Balance at Jamesry 1, 2018 {54, 7043 (91, 066) {22361} {%68,133)
Depreciation charge Tor the year (4,370 {G3.878) (2.135) {70,383}
Written back on retirement and disposal T 55519 1561 ST.R0
Reclussification 6 439 {465} -
Balance af December 31, 2008 (58,3040 (498,586 (23400} (580, 68065)
Depreciation charge for the year (4.185) {64.672) (2101} {T0.958)
Writhen badk on retirement and disposal 651 56,043 2311 59935
Reclassification 1% 358 {317} —
Balance st December 31, 2019 {61,785 (S06.35T) {23.567) (591,705
Met book value al December 31, 2019 42,580 355,360 R06E A10,008
et book wahie 2t December 31, 2008 44,241 155396 2158 407,795
1 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
EAT0
Balance at Jamuary 1, 2018 73106
Addediticas TAAST
Transferred to property, plant snd equipment {T4.879)
Transfemred to inkangible assels (6,040
Balance at December 31, 2018 646,644
Additions 76,870
Transferred to property, plant snd equipment {77.861)
Tramsdeaved to intangible acets (6447)
Balmce at December 31, 2019 59,206
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11.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

T elecarnirmin et

L rirbisid Aowran and

Linds  Bulldings  relaied ssseis Equipment  Gihen Total

RMB RMB ERB EMB RME RRIE
As of Jumnary 1, 2009
Carrying amount 21,568 TOTH 173N 9311 2T 65534
As of December 31, 2019
Carrying amou 20.952 B89 33,74 8361 3T G549
For the year endes] December 31, 2009
Diepreciation charge Tii 1968 . hts 1,602 A b

For the year ended December 31, 2019, expenses relating 1o shorl-term leases and other leases with lease terms ended within 12 months of the
date of mitial application of [FRS 16 amounting 1o RMB93%, expenses relating to leases of low vahue assets {(excheding short-term leases of low value
asets) amountmg to BME4S and variable lease payiments nol mcleded in the mexarement of lexse labilities amomnbing to RAEE,640, are recogrized
m prodil of loss

For the year ended December 31, 2019, total cazh outflow for leases = RME 18,240, and additions 1o right-of-se assels are RMES, 172,

The Growg leses telecomimunications lowers &nd related asses, land and buildmnes, equipment and other assels for ils operations. Ledase lerms are
negotinted on m indivadieal basis md contam o wide mnge of different terme and conditions, [n detemuining the lease term and seseasing the length of
the non-cancellable period. the Group applies the definitbon of 3 contract and determines the peniod for which the contract is enforceable.

As af December 31, 2009 the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lesse expense
disclosed above in this nole.
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12 GOODWILL
Dveermbet 31
HiE S
“RMIE | TwEMn
Clonsf:
Goodwill anang from scqeistion of COMA basiness 29.972 26.073

O Oetabser 1, 2008, the Geoup scquired the CDMA miobale commizication bosm ess and related st ol habilities, which ala meluded the
entire eaaity interests of Chisa Unioom (Mucan) Company Limited (curmently known as liina Telecom (Macan) Company Limiedy and %9 5% equaty
mterests of Unicom Huasheng Telecommunications Technology Company Limited (cumently knoan as Tianyi Telecom Terminals Company Limited)
{collectively the "CDMA business™) from China Unscom Limited and China Unicom Corporation Lmited (eollectively " Olina Unicom™). The purdyase
price of the business combinaion was RMEA3 200, which was fully sdtled as of Trecember 31, 2000, In addston, parsumnt to the scquisiion agroament,
the Group acqured the customer-related n=sets and ssumied the customer-relabed liabilities of COMA busness for o net seitlement ameount of
RME1ATI due from Chima Unicom. This smouml was asbsequently setibed by China Unicoe in 2009 The business combination was accounted fior
usmg the purchse method.

The goodwill recognized in the business combination is aitributable to the skills and technical tabent of the acquired busines"s werkforoe, md the
symergies expected to be achieved from mlegraling and combming the CDMA mobile communication business inta the Group”s telecommmications.
business.

For the purpose of geoadwill impaimment testing, the goodwill srising from the acouisition of CDAA business was allocsled 1o the approgriate
cush-generming unit of the Group, which isihe s ebec peatiors busi The recaverable ameourt of the Group's teleconmunications
bussiness k5 extemeated based on te value n use model, which copsaders the Group’s fivmnciad budgels covermg a five-year period anc o pre-tax discount
rate of 9.2% (2018 9.4%), Cash flows beyond the five-yem period are exdtrapolaied using 3 steady 1.5% growth rte (2018 1.5%). Management
performed impairment tests for the goodwill & the end of the reporting period and determined that goodwill was not impaired. Mansgemend believes
any reasofably pessble change in the key asamptions on which the recoverable amoura is based would ol cause its secoverable amvount to be less tan
CUTYINE amoun.

Key azsumplions used for the value in wse cloulstion model are the namber of subscribers, average revenue per subscriber and gross margin,
Managemend determined the number of subseribers, average revenue per subacriber and gross margin based on historical irends and financial
mformation mnd opermioml data.
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1) INTAMGIBLE ASSETS

Ealtwire
RME
Ol
Balmee al bnuary |, 2018 34,550
Additions 265
Transfemed from constniction in progress 6,040
Digpasals (3.545)
Balance at December 31, 2018 37314
Addditions 624
Transfemred from construction in progress 6447
Disposals (581}
Balmce ag December 31, 2019 43,794
Accurnulated smortizstion md impainment:
Balmce a lnuary |, 2018 1221559
Amaortization charge for the year {4,366)
Written back on disposals 3372
Balance at December 31, 2008 (23153
Amvortization charge for the year (4.844)
Witten back on disposals 153
Ralance of December 30, 2009 {27.445)
Mt bock vabwe af December 31, 2009 16,349
et book vahie af December 31, 2008 14,161
14, INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
Decembe 31,

Tl EITE]

RME W
Cost of investment in associates 36933 37173
Shige of pod-aciquasition danges i nel assds LIS L

IB081 39,197
Fair value of listed investments 46,797 55,601

The Group's inlerests in associabes are aocounled for under the equity method Detadls of the Group™s principal associates sre as follows;
Atzributabile
ame uf crampany EE."""‘ Prineipal mooky b
China Tower Corporation Limited {Note (i) HW5%  Constnecion, maidenmcs ad operation of
telecommamications towers a8 well as ancilbary facililics

Shagghal Informilion vestment Dncorparation (ot (i) Miee  Provision of iiformiatics Lechiology congiltancy services

Moles

(M China Tower Corporation Limited " China Tower™) is etablished and cperated m the PRC, and listed on the Mam Bowrd of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limiled on Angust 8 2018 Income from mvesmeents m sssociabes for the year ended December 31, 3018 inchudes: (a) a one-off
gain amounting to MBI 170 arising from the dilution of the Company's share in China Tower in respect of China Tower's listing, inchuding
those relesstd from the deferred gain from the digrosal of telecommunications towers and related assels (the “Tower Assets Disposal™); and
(b} share of profils of ssasciales

(i} Shanghai Infomeation Investmen! Incorporation (“Shanghai Info-mvestment”) is established and operated in the PRC and is not traded on any
Aok ﬂdlu‘ﬁn.
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuwed)

Sunmarized fnmcral mfomation of the Group™s grincipal ssociates and reconci bed 10 the curying amounts of mierests m assocales m the

Group's consalidated financial sisements are disclosed below:

Clrent assefs
Teon-current assets
Current liabdlilies
Ton-gurrent labilities

Operating revenues

Profit for the year

Calver comprehensive moome for the year
Total comprehmsive income for the yew
Dividend received fram the asaciate

Heconcile to the Groug' s interesds in e associate:

et assets of the sssociate

on-cortrolling mterests of the assciale

‘The Group's effective inferest in the sssociate

The Group's share of net asseis of the associate

Adpustiment for the remaining balmnce ol the defarmed gain from the Tower Asels Disposal
Carrying amound of the interest in the associate in (he consolidated financial ststements of the Group

Ciament assels
Mon-currend assefs
Cament linbaliics
Mon-current liabilities

Cperating revenues

Profit for the year

Cahver comprehenave meome for the year
Total comprehensive mcome for the vesr
Dividend received from ihe associate

Recondle to the Group's interests In the assoclate;

el nssets of the sssociate

Mon-controlling nterests of the associale

The Groap's effective interedt in the asociale

The Group's share of net assets ol the associle

Curryingg amound of the mterest in the azsociate in the consolidated financal statements of the Groug
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20,103 742
=0k poel il
EATE EMHE
71819 76478
2650 5.1
2650 5,221
- 81
e eimibien 31

S0 iy
“EME “REG
180,502 182,561

{2}
20.5% 20.5%
37003 17425
(1015} (365}
35990 16,560
Shanghad Infes investeent
Trexrymsher 30
20k Pl el
EMB EME
T.181 4252
£4092 5,203
G415 24504
1. 585 187
20i8 0Ly
BNE HME
4337 LR
SEG 1.158
(%) {7}
537 1151
@ 9
Tecrmbior 31,
S J01F
RMB RME
173 G214
(21809 {144]
0P MR
1.198 1.457
1158 1457
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14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES fcontimued)
Aggregate linmcal mformion of the Group's associates that are pot individually matenad i disclosed below:

:

L

‘The Groap's share of profit of these associates
The Groap's share of lolal comprehensive income of these associales

|| &
g

Im
(4

Deoamlber 31,

g

=
-

Aggregale camying amount of interests in these sssociates in the consolidated financial statements of the Group

l£g
=

15 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER CONMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Decmnber 31,
Mot  JHE I00R
EMEBE

-

Eaity securities listed i the mainland China {i)
Unlisted equity securilics tiy 214
852

%

a2
B

|

1
Lh
-

obes:

(0 The alwve listed equity menaments ngaresal ordmary shires of enlities listed m the mamnland China, These investments &re nod held for truding,
mstead, they are held for long-term draegic purposes. The directors of the Company have elected to designate these mvestmients in equity
instruments as of FVTOCT asihey believe that recognizing short-term Msduations in these investments” fair value i profil or loss would mot be

consizent with the Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-tarm purposes and realizmg their performance potential in the fong nim

(i} The above unliged equily securitics represent the Oroup's equity interesis in vamious private entities establishied in the PRC. The directors of the
Coniprany harve dlecled to designate these investiments in equily indruments as of FVTOC] as they believe that the Group will hold these
mvestments for long-lerm strategic purposes.
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16, DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The companents of deferred tux assels amd deferred tax labilities recognized in the consolichted Aaternent of financial position and the
mavemends are as follows:

Aswrty Liabisiliss et Balance
EE ] 2018 EIIE] ENE] EE]
B L T R
Provisions snd impaimmant bosses, pramsarily For credit losses 1925 1,953 — — 1,925 1,953
Property, plant and equipment, and olhers 4,580 4BE2 (13022 (FE.831)  (B4I)  (13.545)
Right-of-use assels and lease liabilities — TH — — — T
Deferved revenes and installation costs i9 1% (29 [13) 10 b
Equity instruments & fair value through other comprehensive income — — (&TH {234} (87} (234)
Defermed tax assets/(labslitbesh 6544 7517 (15038 (19.078) (6.5%0) {11.501)
Recugniied
I comnlkdaned
Balance w1 Al of Balands al
Jmmumy 1, camprehensive Trecember 31,
27 e 2017
RN T RMII
Provisions and impaimment §osses, primarily for doobiul debas 1.531 05 1626
Property, plant and equipment, and others (1,006} 13,000} (44,007}
Delamed revenues and installation costs 35 (14} 19
Available-for-sale equity securitics (265} 100 (16%)
et defierred tax assets/{linbilities) Pl {2822} (2,531}
Tecognited
i commiaidsied
Testancr a Changes i stabmnd of Talanse at
Decembes 31, woomting omprEee Trecembier 31,
2017 palicie came 2018
RMH RME RME RAME
Provisions snd impainment losses, primsarily fior credil losses 1626 03 i3 1525
Property, plant and equipment, and others (4,007} {1.066) (3,365} (8442
revenises s installation costs 19 — i 10
Avmilable-for-mle equily securitics 116%) 169 — —
Edquity instruments af fair value through other comprdionsive income — (169 52 {87)
et deferred tax linbillics (2531} (263) (32000 [6.594)
Feriignied
in comaBdwied
Halenie w Change in anatewemt of Balunqe ui
Decamber 3, o prehemalye [ ber 30,
0 puley mcamnr kg
=) RMHE RAIR RALN
Provistons and impaimment bsses, primarily for credit losses 1525 — ] 1.953
Property, plant and equipment, and others (B.442) - [5.527) 113,969
Right-ol-use weets mnd lexse labilities o 676 68 T4
Deferved revenuees and installation coss 10 — %) 3
ity instruments & fair vale through other comprdensive imcome (&7} — {147) (234}
et delemred tax liabililics [6.554) 76 (5583} {10.501)
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17, OTHER ASSETS

Necrnber 31,
Hoe 1E I F

" RMEB RME
Conltract costs iy 1,287 988
Instaliation Fecs 124 56
Chver bng-term prepaid expenses 34 31643

4840 4687

MNote:

(1) Conbrac costs capitalized &= of December 31, 2018 and 2019 mainly relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to third party szents whose
selling adtivilies resulted in subscribers entering into telecommunicalions service agreements with the Group. The amount of capitalized costs
recognized in profin or boss during the years anded December 31, 2018 aivd 2009 was BMB1, 744 and BME 367, respectively. There was no
mmipaiment in relution to the openmg balance of capitaliced costs or the costs capitalized during the year,

15 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt comprises:
Drecembies 31
HlE 08
RME  RMB
Loans from banks—unscamed 12,581 15831
Super shorl-tem commeercaal pupers-—unseciared 27,992 15,995
Othver boans—aunseamed &0 B0
Loans from China Telecom Group—unseared B584 6621
Total sharl-tenm debt 49537 42527

The weighted average interesd rate of tee Group's toizl short-term deld s of Decambier 31, 2008 mcd 2019 was 3.2% par mium and 2.5% per
angim, respectively. As of December 31, 2009, the Group®s leans from banks and other loans bear interest st mtes ranging from 355 to 4.4%
{December 31, 2018 3.5% to 4.6%) per annum, and are repinyable within one year; as of December 31, 2019, super shortderm commercial papers bear
nterest al rtes rmging from 1900 1,2% (December 11, 2008 7.1% 00 3.3%: per wumm, and will be repard by June 1% 2020, the leans from China
Telecom Group bear inferest al rate of 1.5% (December 31, 2018: 3.2%) per annum and &re repayable within one year.

Lomg-term debd comprises:
Deerimiber 30
Inkerss rutes s d final maturiy FT ERIT)
RMI HAM
Hank loans—unsecured
Renminbi denominated (MNote (i) Interest rales ranging from 1.08%s 1o | .20% per anmum with matarities through 2034 £455 7,738
175 Duwllars demominated Interest rales ranging from 1.25% 0 2008 per anmum with maturities throagh 2028 134 188
Euro denommated Interest rate of 2.30%% per anmum with matunities through 2032 1949 173
29590 8199

CHber Jomis—unseoured
Rerminbi denominaled 1 |
Medivmi-tenn note—unscoumed

(Mateliy - 4,505
Laans from China Telecom

Group—uneoured
Renminbi denominated (Note (i 3700 23,300
Total long-term debl 45,991 36405
Less: Cuvent partion 11,139 [ERETY]
Mon-current portion 44,852 32051
Mobes:

(i The Groap obtained long-term EMEB denonuinated gevermment Foans with below-market inbered rates mnging from 1.08% 1o 1 20%% per anmum
threnigh banks (the “Low-intered Lomns"h. The Group recognized the Low-miered Loans at their fair value on initial recognition, and scoreted the
dizcounl to profit or loss using the effective inferest rte methad, The difference Iswesn the fur value and face vabue afihe Low.interest Loans
was recognized as government grants in deferred revenue (MNode 235

F-15

199/243

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminid amounts i millions, exeept per stare deta and except otherwise statod)

15 SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT {rontinued)
HMobes (contmued)

(i} On January 22, 20149, the Group issued three-vem. RMBI. 000 denominated medsum-lenm nole with annual inlerest rate of 3 42% per annum, and
imaured issing costs of MBI The medium-tam note is unsecured and is repayable on January 21, 2022, On Mardh 19, 2009, the Group issued
three-vear, RME2,000 dencmninated medium-term note with anmual interes rate of 3.41% per misum and incurred igaing costs of RME3, The
medinam-term note is mmseared and is repayable om March 18, 2072

iy The Growg obtained longdem RME denoniinated loans with the interest rate of 3.5% per amimum from China Telecommunicstions Conporaiion o
December 15, 2017, whidh are repayable withan 3 to 5 years. The Group partially repaid thes: loans amounting to RME 1,000 and RMBR1 3,700,
respedively, in 3018 and 2005,

The ageregale maturities of the Group's lmg-lerm debt subsaquent to December 31, 2019 are as Fol lows:

LR

2020 4444
0 1,078
el k] 16,032
b lri] WG4
24 w0
Therenfler 1036

IGADS

The Groag's shomt-lerm and long-term debt do pol contain any fnancesl covenmis. As of December 31, 2018 anc 2009, the Group had unitilized
commrtitted credst facilities mmounting bo RAMBL 50,693 and RMB245,847 respecively.

19 ACCOUNTS PAYARLE

Drormber 31,
018 ETH
Third pantics #4183 TRIX
China Telecom Group 058 1958
China Tower 2,850 4312
Calver tedecommumacalions operators in the FRC GHy GED

107,887 102616

Amounts dhue to China Telecom Group amd Chisa Tower are payable im accordance with contrachual terms which are similar to those terms
affered by third partics.

0, ACCRUED EXFENSES AND OTHER PAYARLES

Diecrmbier 31
s FIIT)
kM RAln

Ammoimnts dise to China Telecam Group 2071 6,069

Aamenmts < Bo Chima Tow e 1246 1,261

Amoumts diee to other telecommunications operators in the PRC Ll n

Accrued expenses 33811 34,628

Value-sdded tax payable Easl 564

Customer depasits and recempts in sdvance 578 5952

43,497 4516

F-46
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I, CONTRACT LIABILTTIES

Deecemibeng 31

HoiE ¥

“RME
‘Third panies 55638 54,225
China Telecom Group 145
China Tower —
35,783 543

ﬁLé

Az of hnery 1, 2018, contradt lishilities amounted o RMBG2, 175, Majonty of contract liabilities as of Decomilser 31, 2018 was recogmized as
operaling revenues for the yewr ended Deceamber 31, 3019,

11 LEASE LIABILITIES

Isecember 31,

2009

RME
Within one year 11.56%
Withim a period of nvore than one vear bl nol mere than two years 10,887
Within a period of more than two year but not more than five years 16,255
Withe a pervod of awre Bian ive vears 3435
4,146
Less: Cument poriion 11.569
on-current portion 30,577

13 DEFERRED REVENUES

Defemed revenues a5 of Decamber 31, 2019 mainly represent the uneamed portion of installstion fees for wireline services received from
customers {Mote 173, mnd the unamentized portion of government grants (Nole 18],

HE Fi k]

EME EME
Balmce af beginming of the year 1274 1829
Reechictions for the year:
Amortization o mstallation fees 138 430)
Amortization of govermment grams 007 284
Babwce af end of year L3210 1455
Representing:
Current portion 375 358
Non-aament porticn Jddd 1087
1826 1455

F47
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14 SHARE CAPITAL

S e
TR TTMn
Registered, vused and ully paid
67.054,958.321 ordinary domedic shares af REMB100 cach 67055 67055
13,877 410,00} pverseas listed H shares of RAMB1 .00 each 13,877 13877
20,932 80,537
Al ordinry domestec shares and H shares rand; pod pacsy i all material respects.
15 RESERVES
Geneval
Caplal Share Surphe Tisk Cier Exchangs  Hetained
FERffvr :N:I'l'lhﬂ'l FEASTY i e FVF (L2 sl [ia2said HJDIE Tmal
FMEB HAE RME HME TME RAMEB RME BME
Hste G (Mt (22lh (Mot (v (Mole GiD
Balance asof January 1, 2017 17160 10746 72611 = 711 (622) 133,839 234445
Total comprehemsive income for the ves - — — - (T93) [259) 18617 12,063
Acquisition of the Eighth Acquired Group (Nae 1} (30) = = - - - (m 8T}
Acquisition of non-controlling inlerests 45 — — - — — — 4
rvidemds (Mote 32) - - i - - - (75300 (75300
Appropmiations 16 datulory amplus reserve (Male (i) - 1 486 - - 11.686) -
Cihvers - — — — (4} — — {4}
Balace a5 of December 31, 2017 17,126 10,746 74,297 ~ 414 (ERL) 143,233 44,935
Changes in accouning policies - — 302 - —_ — 2.673 1975
Balance xsof January 1, 201% 17126 10,745 4590 - 414 (B81) 145906 24790
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (249} 1 a0 2L
Dhspoial of investments in equity mstraments o fuir
value throwugh ciher comprehensive imcome - - — - (5) — 5 -
Cantribution from mon-controlling mterests 680 — - — — - 680
Dividends ( Note 32) - - - - - - (7.568) (7.568)
Appropriaticns to stalutory surplus reserve (Mote fiil) — — 1875 — — — [1.875) =
Balmce az of December 31, 2018 17806  I0T46 76474 - L6 [T27) 157678 262137
Change in accounting policy (Nole ) = = {243} = = = (2197 (2440)
Balance x=of Jamiary |, 2019, 55 restated 17806 L0746 76,231 - 160 (T27) 155481 259697
Total comprehensive income for the yewr - - - - 455 102 20517 11,074
Acquisition of non-controlling inlerests ] - - - - — - 3
Share of 2n associate's other changes in reserves (305) — — — —_ - - (305)
Dhvidends (Mote 32) — - — - — {R.891) [2.591)
Appropriations (o stalutory arplus reserve (Note (il — — 112 - — — 11.812) -
Approprintions o generil nisk reserve of Finnce
Company (Mote (v -~ - - 13 - - [23) -
Balance s of Decamber 31, 2019 17 10,7 TR 23 615 [625) 165372 171578
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15

Moles:

i

(it

[{1T1]

i

RESERVES (continued)

Capital reserve of the Group masnky represents the sum of (a) the difference between the camying smount of the Company's net assets and the par
vatlise of the Company's shares isased upon its formation, (b) the difference between the consideration pad by the Group for the entities scoquired,
other thig the Filth Acquired Groug, fram China Tebecommmications Corporation, which were scoointed for as cquaty ranssctions a5 dsloced
in Mode 1. and the historical camying ameoant of the net a=ssets of these scquired antities, and {c) the difference between the consideration paid by
the Group for the acquisition of non-controlling interests and the historical curying amoml of te non-controlling imerests acquired.

The difference between the consideration paid by the Group smd the historieal caryimg mmount of the net assels of the Filth Acoquissiion was
recorded as 8 dedudtion of relained earnings.

Capital reserve of the Company represents the difference berween the carrymg amount of the Company®s net assets and the par value of the
Coanpeany”s shanes ized upon s formation.

Cther reserves af the Growp and the Company represent primarily the change in the fair value of imvestment m equity mstruments at FYTOC] and
the deferred tax liabilities recognized doe to the dyange in fair value of those mvesment in equity instruments,

The surpliss reserves consist of stalutory arplus reserve snd discretionary surplus reserve.

According to the Company's Anticles of Associntion, the Company i required 1o transfer 102 of its net profit, as determined in accordance with
the lower of the amoant determined under the FRC Accounting Standards for Busingss Enterprises and the amomnl determined under IFRSs, to the
stalutory surplus reserve until such resarve balance reaches 507 of the registered capital. The transfir to this reserve must be made before
disanitwition of any dividend to dharcholders, For the ver ended December 31, 2019, the net profit of the Company determianed m accordance with
the FRC Accounting Slandards for Business Enterprises and IFRS are the sume. For the yeur ended Diecember 31, 201%, the Comgarny transferred
RMBI 812, being 10% of the year's net profit, te this reserve. For the year ended December 31, 2008 the Company transferred RMEB1ETS, being
10 of the year's et profit determined i accordance with the PRC Accountmg Standards for Busnes Enterprises, (o this reserve. As of
Diecember 31, 2018, January 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019, the smoun! of datutory srphes reserve was RAMB30 355, RMB0 52 and

RMBA1 964, respectively.

The Compacry dicl mol transfer any discretionary awplus reserve for the years ended Decambser 31, 2018 amd 2009, As of December 31, 2018 arwl
2004, the amount of dscretionary surphus reserve wis RMBA46,079,

‘The atutory and discrefionary surplus reserves are non-distnibatable other than in ligaidation and can be used to make good of previous years'
losses, if any, and may be wlilized for business eqansion of converted imto share capital by issuing new dhares to existing shareholders in
proportion to their sharcholdings or by mcreasing the par vafue of tie shares cusrently held by them, provided that the remaining resarve balance
ufter snch dsaie is ol less than 25% of the registered capital

According to the Company's Anticles of Association, the amour of retained eamings available for distribution to sharcholders of the Compary is
the lower of the amvount of the Company s retained camings determined in accordance with the PRC Acoounling Standards for Business
Enterprises mdd the amount determmed in accondance with [IFRS:. As of Decanber 31, 2018, Janoary 1, 2019 and Decamber 31, 2019, the amount
of retained eamings available for distribution was REMBI33,076, BMB 130,892 and BAMB132,312 respectively, being the amount determined in
aceordance with IFRSs. Final dividend of spproximately RAMED, 126 in respect of the finencial yesr 2019 proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognized as a lbality inthe consolidsted Ninancial Aatoments at the end of the reporting period (Mot 325

Pursiant o ~Requirements on Impsirment Allowance for Financial Institutions”™ (Caijin [2012] No. 20) issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC effedtive on July 1, 2002 dihe “Roquirements™}), Finence Company edablished 3 geveral risk reserve within equity, through appropristion of
retained earnings, (o addres= unidemtificd potential losses relating to risk assets, The general risk reserve bulance should not be less than 1.5% of
the eniding balmee of risk assets, @ defined in the Requranents,

F-49

203/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminid amounts i millions, exeept per stare deta and except otherwise statod)

It OPERATING REVEMUES

ﬂWﬂqumlﬂ'
Hotes 2018 2089
RME FMB
Type of goods oF servioes
Fevenue from contracts wilh customers
Ve (i S0.811 45146
Intemiet (i I1908T] 197244
Information and application services fiiiy 83478 87623
Telecommunications network resource mnd equipment services {ivp 2021 21978
Sales of goods and others 0 _2id4s0 17,906
Sulstola] ATLEIl 365897
Bevenue from oher sources iy 43 5837
Tolal operating revenues 17 'I"I‘Eli ."I-'u‘,‘hl'.‘!-d
Timing of revenue recognition
A prainl i tmee 24496 14,591
Crver time 352628 361,143
Total operating revenues 370124 3757
Moles:

0 Represent the szeregate amount of voice wsage fees, inetallation fees und miercomections fees charged Lo customers Tor e provision of
telephoary services,

(i} Represent amounds charged to custemers for the provision of Internet access services.

i) Represent primarily the aggregate amount of Tees chrged to custoniers for the provison of Internel data center service, Systom integration
services, e-Surfing HD service, caller [D service and short messaging service and ete.

(v} Represent ameants dharged fo other domestic telecommunications operators and enterprise costomers for the provision of telecommunications
network resource and cquipmen services,

(v) Represent primarily revenme from sales, and repair and mamtenance of telecommumications equipament as well as the resale of mobile senvices
MV,

{vik  Represent primarily revemie from property rental and olher reverises.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2019, the aggrezated amount of the transsction price allocated to the remmining performance obligations under the
Crougr's exiging contracls represents revenae expected to be recognized in the ftire whven service ks provided over the contract tenms over the pext |
year Lo 3 years.

For the year ended December 31, 2007
‘The components of the Group®s operating revenues are as follows:

Vobce 61678
Interme 172,554
Information and application services T34
Telecommanications netwosk resource and couipment strvices 19,125
39578

366239
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17, NETWORK OPERATIONS AND SUPPORT EXPENSES

Operating and maintcreance

Lility

Metwork resources usage and related fee
Calvers

Mobe:

¥ i pded Decembes 1,
Fete _ 2017 30 NB
= T TEae  RaB
55360 64056 65,087
12522 13477 138318
iy 656 29434 20976
@161 9,095 9,018

() Network resources usage and related fee for the year ended December 31, 3019 inchudes the varishle lease payments and fee for non-lease
components in relation 1o telecommumications towers and relaed assds bease and fee in relation 1o the short-lerm leases and leases of lowvalue
assels, varialle lease payments mnd foe for non-base components in relation to the wsage of rework resources pravidied by thind pastics

25 PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Parsoimel expenses are altrbulable 1o (be followans finctions:

Metwork oparations and sigpon
Selling. general aid admmstraive

% OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Interconnection
Cost of goods sold
Donations

Cahers

Mobes:

X rar endrd Dromsbrer 11
T Rl o il

HME  BME  RMB

358574 40383 4LIM
17469 19348 21,353
SeM3 39736 63567

¥ ear ended Deoemiber 31,
Kes _J007_ 0l _JoAv_
T "HME RMB  RMB
M 12223 12878 11683
iy 3712 2308 13413
3 m 1
(i) 1634 1614 1695
AS612 37657 27

3

0 Interconmnedion charges reprosant amounts meurred for the wse of oher domestac asd foreign telecommunications operators” networks for delivery

af voice snd data traffic that ongimate from the Group's telecommunications networks,
(i} Cost of geods sold primanly represents cost of telecommunications equipment sobd.
(i) Cebers madndy include tax and surchurges other than value-added tix and income ta,

3. MET FINAMNCE COSTS

Interest expensy on shor-term and long:-tom debis
Interest expense on lease lishalities

Les: Interest expense capitalized™

Mel intered expense

Interest income

Foreign exchange losses

Farcign exchange gains

= Intere: expense was capitalized in consnection in progress at the following rates per anmmm
F-51
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Wwad prded Decanbes 31,

o1 T EOE] 1%

RMIE HALH CET
3913 3278 1,623
— - 1607
32T) {155) (140}
7,556 3,093 4090
29 {30) (492)
(1] 413 GE0
(530) (s02) (639)
3,291 3708 3,635
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3. INCOME TAX
Income b 1 the profil or los comprises

Wenr mied D ecensber 31
AT IE S0IF
RME  RMEB  RME
Provision for FRC incoms tax 30147 3408 7H]
Provizon for income s af atlier tax jinsdidions 123 120 105
Deferved baxation 2927 3182 5436
6,192 6GEI 6,322

A reconciliation of the expedted tax expense with the achaal tax expense is as follows:

¥ear ruded Decmnber 31,

Motes o017 0 I

T TEMB_TRMB  EME
Eamings before income tax 24553 I4.148 17.034
Especiesd income tax expense al sialutory tax rave of 25% i 6GXIE 7087 6759
Differential tax rate on PRC subsidiaries” and branches” inoome i s ) (315
Drifferential tax rate cn other subsidisries” income (ki) [E.74] (5%) (12%
Hon-deductible expenses (K} 380 57 975
Ton-taxable income tiv) (Ll (319y e
Cahvers o) _ (124 ey (512
Al incomie tax expense 6,192 6810 6332

Mol

() Exogd for cortam subsidiaries and branches which are mainly taxed ot a preferential rte of 1 5%, the provision for mainland China mconse tax s
based on a satutory rate of 5% of the assessable income of the Compary, its mainband China subsidiaries and branches as determined in
aceondunee with the relevant mevene tax rules and segulations of the PRC.

(i Imcome tax provisions of the Company™s subsadiaries in Hong Keng and Maecw Special Administrative Regrons of the PRC, and in other
coundries are tased on the subsidiaries” assessable mcome and income tax rates applicable in the respective 1ax jurisdictions which range from £%%
[ 3 5%

mi)  Amoimts represent mescellancous oqpenses in eoces of satutory dedidible lmmits for L parposes,

(ivh  Amoumnts represed miscellaneous income which are not subgect to income tax.

(vl Amoimis prienarily represent setilament of tax Niling differences of prior year annual tax redum and other tax bencfils such as addilional tax
deduction on rescarch and developmenl expmses

AL DIVIDENDS

Pursiant 1o a resolulion passed of the Board of Directors' meetmg om March 24, 2020, a final dividend of equivalent 1o HEKS0.125 per share
totuling approximately RMBS 1246 for the vear ended Decanber 31, 2009 was proposed for shareholders” approsal al the Annual General Medting, The
dividend has not been provided for in the consolidsted financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019,

Puragant to the shareholders' approval at the Annual General Meeting held on May 29, 2009, a final dividend of BMBO.10985 1 {equivalent to
HK 0.1 25) por shire lodaling RAMBS, 291 in respeat of the year awded December 31, 2008 was declared, and paid on July 26, 2019,

Pursiant 1o the sharchobders® approval o the Annunl General Mecting held on May 28, 2008, a finul dovedend of EMB0O0S3E1 2 {equivalent te
HES0.115) per share todaling RABT, 565 in respedt of the year avded December 31, 2007 was declared, and paid on July 27, 2018

F.52
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A3 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
The caleulatvon of Tasic earnings per share For the vears ended Decamber 31, 2017, 2018 avd 200 9 is based on the profit attributable to cquity
hobders of the Company of RAMBIS.61T, RMB21,.210 and RMB20.517, respectively, divided by 50.532,368,321 chares.

The: amcant of diluted eamings per share ismol presented as there were no dilubive potential ordinary shares i existence for the periods presented.

3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cpenating fease commiliments

‘The Groags leases business pramises andd equipment (hrough non-cancellable operating lexses. Mone of e rental agreements contain escaluiion
provisicns that may require higher future rental payments nor impose restricions on dividends, sdditional deba and‘or fanther leasing.

Az af December 31, 2008, the Group”s filure mimemum lense grovments uncer non-cascellsble operating lezses are a5 follows:

RME
it/ 1] 15.658
2020 14 466
202 13440
022 11682
2023 3461
Therealler 6,058
Total minimum lease payments 5,805

Cwperating lease commitment as set ot sbove mclodes the lease commitment to Chima Tower for the tower assels lease fee. The amount was
caleulated based on the airrent |ease condition and did not take into considaration the contirgen adjustment 1o he lease charges resalting from the
change in shanng of certain lowiers amongs the lelecommmacations apernlors,

Total renlal expense m respect of operating leases chargedd Lo profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 201 7 and 2008 were RMBIS 493
and RMB27 810, regpectively.

Capiral conmeimenis
As af December 31, 2009, the Group had cagital commitments s follows:
Rain
Centracted For bud not provided
= propeny L3I0
- lelecommaunications netwark plant and equipment 15,131
20,041
Contingent Nabilithes

fa}  The Group was sdvised by their PRC lawyers that no material comtingent liabilities were asaumed by the Groug.

(b)  Asof December 31, 2008 and 2019, the Group did not have contingent liabilities in respect of guaraniees given to banks in respect of banking
facilithes granted to olher panies, o ollver forms of commgent laltlities,

Legal contingencles

The Group i i defendint in comtam lawsuis us well as the nemed panty in dlves proceedmgs arisng in the ondmary cowrse of business.
Management has assessed the likelihood of an unfavourable outconee of swch contingencies, lawsuits or other proceedings and based on such
assessment, believes that any resulting lisbilities will not have a material adverse effed on the financia position, operating results or cash flows of the
G‘uqu

F-33

207/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminld amounts i millions, cxeept per sare deta and excat otherwise statod)

35 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fanancinl assets of the Group include cash and cash equivabemis, bank deposits, equity nstrument, socomts receivable, fimundal assds ol FVTPL
and financiad assels mcduded in prepayments and other aerent assels. Fmancial lislililies of the Group include short-term and long-term debt, acoomis
payable and firancial liabililies incheded in acered expenses and other payables.

(i} Far Vialwe Meamrements
Based on 1FRS 13, ™ Fair Palwe Meanoessens™, e fair value of each financial instrusvent is calegorized in its entirety based on e lowest level of
inpuut that is significant o thal fair vabue measuremeant. The levels are defined as follows:
¥ Lewvel I: fair values measured using quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instmments
*  Level 2: fur values measured using quoted prices in active maskets for samilar finmncinl ikdnaments, of osing valiatson technigoes m
which all sgnificant mpuls are directly or indirectly based on observable market data
= Level 3 farr vahies measured uang valusilien ledmagues m which any agnificant mput i3 mol lased on oserable mubel data

The: fair vahees of the Group”s financal mstnaments (other than long-term delst and finanaal mstuments neciared at fair value) approximeate their
carrying amounts due to the shori-term maturity of these instruments.

The listed equity securities investment included in the Group's equity instruments al fair value through other compedhensive income are
categerized as level | finanaal instraments. The fur vabue of the Group®s listed equaty securities mvedment, which amoeunted 1o RABG3S and
RMEB 228 a8 of Decemnber 30, 20018 and 2019 respectively was based on quoted market price on PRC stock evchmnges.

‘The: fair vahees of long-term debt i= estimaled by discounting figure cash Mlows eang current market interest mbes offered to the Group for del
with substantially the same characteristics and maturiies. The fair value measurement of long-term debd is categorized as level 2. The interest rabes used
by Wl Growp in estimnating the fair valses of bomg-torm debe, having considered the forcign currancy dencanination of the debt, mnged from 3.7% 10
4.59% (2018 1 0% 10 4 ), As of Docember 31, 2008 and 2012, the carmying amounts and fair vahie of the Group®s bong-lem del was 5 follows:

Diecember M1, 2018 Decmwber 31, 2019
Carrylng  Falr  Carymg  Fak
snomnl  vake smmnt value

EME Ratm RAMI B
Long-term debi 45990 M06%  364E 35780

During the year, there were no transfers among instruments in level 1, level 2 or level 3.

() Rigks

The Group's fimancial instraments ane exposed to three main types of risks, mmely, eredit risk, liquadity risk and market risk (which mainly
comprises of interedt rate risk and Toreign currency exchange rate risky. The Group®s overall risk managenenl program focuses on the unpredictabiliny
of financsl markets and secks to minimize potentisl adverse ¢ffects an the Group®s financial paformance. Risk managenvent is camisd out ander
podicies apprerved by the Board of Directors: The Board provides grinciples for overall risk management, a5 well as policies covering speafic sres,
sich as lindity neke, erecht sisde, snd mvarket sk, The Board regulasly reviews these policies snd mithorzes changes if necesary based on operating
sl market conditions and athier relevant nisks. The following summarizes the qaalitative and quantitative disclosmes for each of the three maim types of
risks

(i3 Credit risk

Credit risk: refers Lo the risk: that 8 coimferpasty will default on s contractual obligations reslting in a finmcial loss (o the Group. For the Group,
thiz arizes mainly from deposits it maintains st financial institetions and credit it provides to customers for the provasson of telecommunications services.

el el ool equivadents and shovt-term bark deposis

To limil exposare to credit red relating to deposits, the Grougs prmarily places cash deposits only with brge gate-owned finences] maitutions in
the PRC with acceplable oredst ratings. The aredit nisks on bemks balanoes are limiled because the conmlerparties are banks with high aredit mimgs,

F-54
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contimsed)
) Résks (rovifrued
(i) Credit risk: (contimied)
Accounts receivable and coniract assets arising from contract s witl cutdomers

For acooiits seceivable and comract assets, managemanl performs sagoing aedit evaluations of its asstoaers” manelal conditbon snd genermlly
does ot require collateral on acceants receivable md contrict assels. These evaluations focus on the cisomer’s past history of making payments when
ahug and current ability o pay, and take mte scoount nfarmmtion specific te the customer aswell as pertaining to the coonomic mvirenment in whach the
qestomer operates. In addition, the Group perfomes impaiment. assessment under ECL mode] upon application of IFRS 9 on trade balances mdividually
ar based on proviston matry. Furthermore, the Group has 2 diversified base of customers with no single customer coniributing more than 10% of
revenues for the peniods presonted

The Growp neeiames boss allowinoes for nceounts receivable and comtrad asscls al an smonnl equsl te lifetime ECL, which i caboulated uang o
provision matrix, of individeally assessed for those debtors with significant balances or credit impaired debtors. As different loss paltems were indicated
chring Lthe analysis af the Group’s higorical cradit boss experience between telephone and Inemel subscribers and enterprise customiers, the following
tables provice informetion sheul the Group's expoasre b credit s md ECL for scoountz receivables md contract assels from telephone md [ntemet
subscribiers and enterprise oustomers, respedively, a5 of December 31, 2018 and 2009

Acoounts receivable from telephone and Intermes swhacribers

Dirermiber 31, 3018

Exprcind Limwe carrying Lima
los rase A sllovrance
T T RME . RMB
Cument, within 1 meeth % 8376 158
1 10 3 months 20% 2117 420
4 1o & months Gl &30 502
71012 months b1 1,093 K75
Crver 12 months 100 43 M3
13168 TEIE

Diecemilr e X1, 20D

Exprcied Chein catrying Lins

oo rade A allomance

y RMB EAMB
Current, within | month Mg 1545 141
1 to 3 months 2% L.777 340
& 1o & months G 739 EE]
710 12 months Bife 1083 BET
Onver 12 months 10 1002 102

12, L5 1803

Accawnis recelvable and contracs assers From enterprise cusiomers:

Dhecamber 3E, 2018

Expated s CaImying. L
hirsd il i allivaier
T “RME __ EMB
1 10 6 months ) 4478 108
T | 2 months 20r% 200 157
I 10 2 years L 479 290
210 3 years s prkl 03
Crver 3 years 10025 08 295
6, 180 105G

F.535
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35 FIMNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contimsed)

(b) Risks feonrfrued

(1) Credit risk: {continued)

Aceonnts recelvable and contract axsers fom enrerprise customers. (comiinued?

Drvommtrr A, 3018

Expreed Cess canmying Lins
Inige rwie Ly allmunie

[ [T [T
1 to & months e 5452 162
Tt 12 months el 1,428 2139
1102 years L] 621 353
2o 3 vears Ty pil] Fai]
Crver 3 years 105 in 364
8,130 1,282

As af December 31, 20059, the boss allowance for scoomils receivable and contrad assets was RAMBAGS2 and RMBS (2018 RAMBA 680 and
RMES), respedively. Loss allowance of RMBA1S and BRMEB734 as of December 31, 20019 and 2018, respectively, which was not caloulated collectively
in the above tebles, was made individuadly oo debtors with significant balmees or oot impadred debtors.

Expected loss rubes are based on nctual loss experience over the past 1 1o 3 years, These rates are adjusted to reflect differences bwem econamic
coaiditions during the period over which the historical data has been colleded, qurrent conditions and the Group's view of cconomic conditions aver the
eqpected lives of the receivables.

Movement i the loss allowsnce scomunt in resped of accounts recevable diring the year is as follows:

anw mw
EMEB FME
Al beginning of year 4761 4680
Impuirment bosses for ECL Lo0g 1653
Ampoumks written of T (2085 (1641}
At end of year ALERD A2
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contimsed)

(b} Kigks foomtinued

(11} Lisidity risk

Licuadsty risk refiers to the sk thal fisds will ot be availible to medt habalstses & they Fall due, and resulls from limng #d samount memaldies
af cash inflow and cutflow, The Group manages fiquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash balances and adequate amount of comamitted banking

factlities to med its fundmg noeds, mcluding working capital, principal and interest payments on debts, dividend pryments, capital expenditures and
new investments for a sel minimum period of between 3 to 6 months.

‘The following table sets oul the remaining contraciusl mabritics af the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities and lease
linbilities, which are based on contractual undiscounied cash flow s (inchuding interest payments computed using contractuad mtes or, if Moing, based
on prevailing rates at the end of the reporting period) and the carliest dabe the Group would be required to repay:

L

Total
R TaTUE] ‘Whhin 1 Mo than 1 Mlore than 3 Mare
Currying  usdiemunied  yeareron  yearbutless  yearsbutlss  chan 5

mfnamE wnsh Maw drinasd Ihan X yrars  than & years Frar
M RACH RME RAD BAD RMB
Short-lenm debt 49537 SL091 1091 - o
Long-term deb 45,591 52,623 2602 15,4604 25061 5358
Acconts payable 107,387 107887 107,887 = == ==
Acenied expenses and olher payables 43,407 43497 43497 — — -
Finace lease obligations 6 il 112 40 &2 7
247,218 25531 205,189 15,644 25143 5365
e

Taal
oontreousl - Wihind Morethn]  Morethanl Mo
Cutrying  usdhenunied  yeareron  yearbutkss  yearibulkss than S

smomE wuth Mow drmand Ihan 2 yrary  than & yeam Lty
RMI RMB RMHE RMB BME EMEB
Shotdemn debt AL52T 43,697 43,697 — - -
Loag-tesm debq 405 40,791 4625 1184 08 4158
Accomis payable 102616 1026ls 102416 - - —
Accrued expenses and other payables 48,516 18,516 48516 - — -
Lease liabilities 42 146 45535 13846 11,754 17266 3,620
272,300 ZEL155  TI2300 11978 dB0%0 7787

Mlanagement believes that the Group's cument cash on hand, expected cash flows from operaions and wailable credit facilities from banks (Nae
15) will be sufficient toe meet the Group's working capital requirements amd repay ils borrowings and obligalions when they become due.

F.57
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contimsed)
(b} Kigks foomtinued

(1t} Inferest rale risk

The Groap's inleresd rabe risk exposaine aniges primarily from s short-berm delbt and long-term debl, Debis currying nberest al variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow intered rate risk and Fair value inlered rate risk respectively. The Group manages its exposure to mberest rale
risk by closely monitoring the change in the market mberest rate.

The fallowing table zets ol the imteres rate profile of the Group's debt ot the end of the reporting period:

£-iL] 2089
Effactir Effrctive
1L 5] Jotores Take
"~ RME w RME

Flued rate chebi:
Shortderm deld 32 49,347 Fi] 29,022
Long-term debdt i3 45,991 LN | 16,4595

95338 65,517
Variable rale debi:
Shoetdermn debt 4.2 154 iz 13,508

1540 13,505

Total debt 95,52 79,022
Fioed rate debt as a percentage of total debt 99 8% B1.9%

Management does ol exped the increase or dearense in mberest rate will materially affeat the Group's financal position md resull of operations
becaise the mieres raies of 82 %% (December 31, 2008 %9.5%) of the Group's shogt-lerm and long-term debt as of Decenbrer 31, 2019 are fived as set
ol abxave,

(rv) Foreign cumrency exchange rate risk

Foreign asrency exchmge rale nsk anises on financial indruments that are denominaled in 8 currency other than the fundtional cumrency in which
they are measured. The Group’s foreign currency risk exposure relates to bank deposits and borrowings denominated primarily in US dollars, Euros and
Hong Kong doliars,

Management does not exped the sppreastion of deprecialion of the Renminbi agains foreign camencies will materially affed the Group's
fmancial posatson and resalt of operations becamise T8.0% (December 31, 201%; 64.085) of the Group' s cash and cash equivalents and 5% 4% { December
X1, 2018 95.4%) of the Group's dhor-lemy and long-term deld a5 of December 31, 2019 are denominated in Benminbi, Details of bank loms
dencminied in other currenaes we st oul in Note 18,

36 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Groag's promary objectives when managing capital are o safgruard the Group®s shily Lo continue a3 a gomg concam, 5o thid il cn continie
to provide myvesdmen! retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services commiensurately with the bevel of
risk and by securing access to finance &t 8 reasonable cost.

Management regularly reviews and mansges its capital siructure bo maintain a balanoe between the higher sharcholder retums that might be
possthie with higher bevels of borrowings and the advantages and scaunty afforded by a sound capital position, and makes sdpstmonts (o the capital
dnecture in light of changes in econamic condiions.

Management monitors ils capital stnscture on the basis of total debt-to-tofal sssets ratio. For this purpoese the Group defines total debt asithe sum
af ghort-term debd amd bome-tom debl. Total debis do net induds balmce of deposits receivexd by Finance Company from China Telecom Group
amountng o RMEA 098 and lease liabilities amounting 1o EMB42, 146 as of December 31, 2005 (December 31, 2008: Wil As of December 31, 2008
anvd 2000 &, the Group®s total debt-to-tota] assets ratio was 14.4% and 11.2% respectively, which is within the range of nenagement”s expectation.

Except Finamce Comgany is subjed to certain capital requirements imposed by China Banking and Inmurance Regulatory Commission. neither the
Comgany o any of 113 sbsidianes we sulyject to extemally imposed capital requirements.
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37, RECONCILIATION OF LIARILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The tubde below details changes in the Group®s Hubalitics ariang from finmcmg adivities, inchading both cash and non-cish dhanges, Linbililics
ansng from finencing sdivities are thase for which cish Aows were, or fislure cash flows will be, dassified in the Group"s comsolidated stalements of
cash flows &s cash flows from financing adtivities.

[are—————
Leww Trpesm gl
Tl e Pl mra w ik Fimasor LI T G
w1 Lang borms dek b o Bgatiaas Do biend passk b Ty g s Waisd
[EEYp——— [T e HAL BT il AL s BT il S i
et i
Bidarcy ng il vy 4, X1 0 &l 7 - - e 1 K]
Fuietrivseg ool P LR ] CRETT} k) L] = LEr i) EILIMG
Hrar Erance lenay - - x0 —_ - - o
esed mgemrt - e [ ] - - - Ll
Foorms g mor bt Iomn - 11 - - - - an
Padarion o Daprd 1 Rod-10r2l LA e asts - = - - = = o
] idarerts - - - i - - 17
Camibeieds dedaf o — — = 1.5 — = 1784
Balasid il Drorachrer 31, W00 [1X] zH FEL) - - — T
Chingr iz et ey = = AT = = = p— T
Badntitn s ol Sassary 1, HL% AT o 4384 = = = ML
[T ———— A ) (A8 {PATH R h (IIATH
barw Lawy - — LELL - - - L
Labiam g Aiomione - - [ - - - [
Tracafend 4 st pa bl - - {100y - - - {150
T - - LaeT - = = LA
echacgy om _ 1 T - - - "
Adguation of re-toriag mlesds = - - - - ] i
Lo cn bt iéns domirSfing ihareily = - = [E] - = 1%
[EEr— — = — LIl = — LIw]
Tisdnet gl Coecesshier 11 SR ALET A FFRET = [T = [T

Mofes

(ip A of Decomber 31, 200%, e balunce of doposits with Finmnce Consgpany smountixg to RN, 058 (Decessber 31, 2005 il ) were mvcheded in ameounts due to
Chinn Telecom Group m sccrued exprnses ind ather pavabiles (Moo 10)

i} For the yenr ended December 31, 3019, oiber thn tee ned finmeing oush ouiflows iceafling BEAMB32 473 e presented sbove: E-surfmg Pay, & subsidinry of the
Compmy, received RMBS0 ns part of the ioial conssdoraiion smounting to RABE% 2 & respedt of contribotion ffom moeoorirol lisg imerests (Note 207 Famoe
Company, & ssbaidinry of the Company. received RAMELS00 i reapect of contribution From nom-controlting mterests (ote 25 ), md placed statulory reseve
deposits anousting b RAMBA0S o ibhe People's Bank of Chisa which i iné luded in e balace of svort-tom bank deposits as of December 31, 2019,

35 RELATED PARTY TRANMSACTIONS
{2)  Tramsaclions with China Teleoom Group

The Groags is a part of companics under Chana Telecommunbeations Corporation, a company owned by the PRC governmeent, and s significant
transactions and busmess relationships with members of China Telecom Group.

The: principal ransactions with Chna Telecom Group which were camied oul in the ordinary corse of busingss are as follows

N rondnd o vosior 31,
i

HAln . EMH HME
7 ERLRA S W P M G T IRFM R
[T s [ T R T T
T () A i)
Elerirnatie Sanger ey ¥l o il
PR AR ¢ CERTEERTY SV (] e 1464
fhéet bae-meion et of Ao povin: [ir) i LIE] 1M
Somie EEoEE (3] 15 & aw
Propeey baie rehied ey (v L] ] ¥
AAKEoE b nght +F oo nraer ity - - ]
Tterr i mgemee o encde Tt bt e - - L1
Promps of 1T earwoy (L] My Bl 44
Fuscorang [T porwis [meg  RRSD LERS 1373
Punzass el aa 4HE LMK b5 ]
Zabe af 1 " am It LM LM
Sehvd dppd.cat oy channe] TR 0 e Ty 1]
Tabiredl om et St 1 il il s (s Tilotas Drowp = LW e al
Cibery (i) " (-] f1]
e G by Chara Taisomn G s sy Fisgics Comgany g - - L)
m;ﬂnhﬁh&?ﬂnﬂm“?—mm [+ - - ¥
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuoed)

{2)  Transaclions with China Teleoom Group (ooniimsed)

Toles:

W Represent construction and engineering as well as design and supervisary services provided by China Telecom Grou.

(i} Represent amounds pasd snd payable to Chim Telocom Group in resped of anallary services such a8 repasrs and mainteance of
telecommunicalions equiprmeent mnd Tacilities and cortam qusionitr services,

(i} Represent amounds received and receivable frompaid and pavable to China Telecom Group for inderconnedtion of local and domestic long
distamee calls.

vk Represent amounts pasd and payabie 1o China Telecom Groug in resped of cultural, educational, health care mdmmmmu} SEFVICES

(v

{vik
(i)

Represent net amount shared between the Company and China Telecom Group for costs associsted with centralized services. The amount
represanls amounts receivied of receivable for the net amount of centralized services.

Represent amounts of property bemse fee reosives mnad receivable from China Telecom Group for leasimg of propenics,

Represent amounts in relation to the easimg of properties from Clrina Telecom Groap. Propenty lease related expenses for the vear ended 31
December 2019 include the fee for short-lerm leases, leases of low-value assels, varishle lease pmyments not depending on an index or a rate and
fiex for non-lease components. Property lease related ecpenses for the years ended 31 December 201 7 and 2008 represent lease fee paid and
patyabile to Chinn Teleeom Groap,

(vili} Represent IT services provided to and received from Chima Telecom Group.

{ix}
)

(e
iy

Represent the smount of telecommunications equipment and materials purchased from/seld to China Telecom Group and commissson paid and
payable for procurement services provided by Chana Telecom Group.

Represent amounts received snd receivable from China Telecom Graup in resped of Intermet applications chanmel services, mchuding the
provision of telecommunications channel and applications suppont platform and billing and dediection services, .

Represent mterest paid and puyable 1o China Tebecom Group with resped to the amount dise to China Tebecommunications Comporation wnd lomns
from China Telecom Gromp (Mote 183,

Represent amounts pasd and payable to China Telecom Group primanly for nsage of CDMA mobile telecommuinications network: ¢ CDMA
network”) facilities located in Xizang Autonomons Region, certan iner-provincial iransmession optic fibers within @5 service regions and land
s

(xini} R.:FI'!‘E:TI. amuainds relabed to Nmncial serices provided by Finance Company te China Telecom Group, mchuding bending seraces, deposil

services and other financial services.

F-&i
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35 RELATED PARTY THAMSACTIONS {oontinoed)
(@) Tramsaciions with China Teleoom Groip (oontineed)
Amaumts due fromTo China Telecom Group are summanaed as follows:

Dreamter 31,

£ ET]

RME RME
Accounts receivable | B v i) I 188
Conarc! e M 3]
Prepenvments s other cumrent mrsts L35 1,233
Tota] mnounts doe from Clann Telecom Groop 2. 2A4%
Aceounts piyubls W58 1953
Accrued expenses md ofser payables Pl | G069
Contrect Esbillitees 145 162
Lemse hibatilies - 359
Short-derm deld LR G621
Long-tenm debt 37000 3300
Totad mnounts due ta China Telecom Cinoap EREEE  S60TD
——— s

Anvaumts chie from/te China Telecom Group, cher than shart-tarm dbl, long-term debit, deposit with Finance Comparny inchuded in acced
expenses and other payabies (Mote 3703, bear no inferest, sre nsccured and are repayable in accordance with contrctual terms which wre similar o
those termms offered by third parties. The terms and conditions sssocisted with shon-tem debt and bong-temm debt due to China Telecom Group are se
aul in Note 18,

As of December 31, 2008 and 2019, no material loss allowance was recognized in regpect of ameants due from China Telecom Group.
{b)  Transactions with China Tower

‘The principal transacticns with Chana Tower arc as follows:

Wean ended Deommlsr 31,

Moles 3007 Si& W

RME RMB RME

Tewur assets beuse related expenses () 1530 1603 10543

Mdditions of night=of-use nesets {il = 3,738

Interest expense on lease labilstics m = — 938

Prevvision of [T srvices fii 49 12 E|
Motes:

M Bepresent amounts in rebation to the beise of tower assets, Tower esses lease relabed expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 inchindes
the variable lease payments not depending on an index or a rate and fee for non-lease componenls. Tower assels bease related expenses for the
yesrs ended 31 Diecember 201 7 and 2018 represent tower sssets lease and related fee paid and payable to China Tower.

) Represent IT and otlver ancillisy services provided to China Tewe,

Anvoimts cue fromto Ching Tower are sammarieed s follows:

2018 2018
RAMB RAE

Accounts recervable 10 L]
Prepavmesis sl efher curren! miscls i 192
Tolal mnounts doe from Chima Tower —333 _l'ﬂ
Accounts puyable TR0 4312
Acerued expenies and cder pavables LMs 1,261
Cortract Babillities - 1
Lease linbililies o 4474
Telad mneunts dur ko China Tover A0 T0IE

P "

Amounls dug from/To China Tower beur no inderest, are unsccured and are repayable in accordmce with contracianl lams which wre similar Lo
those terms offered by third parties.

E-f]
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35 RELATED PARTY THAMSACTIONS {continoed)
) Tramsactions with China Tower {oontinued)
As of December 31, 2008 and 2019, no material boss allowance was recognized in respect of amounts dee from China Tower,

() Koy management personne compsensat lon

Key management personnel ane those persons having authonity and resporsshility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Croug, derectly or indirectly, incleding directors snd supervisers of the Group.

Key munagemna personiel corgrenstion of the Group i ammarized a8 follows:

Wear mpded Decembier 34,

T EIE ET0

RMB RME RME
Shoetderm employes banefits 7804 7042 9,604
Post-emyployment benefils 216 Tah 11598

B.620 5741 10,803

The above remuneration is meluded m personnel expenses.

{d)  Contribations (o post-employment benefli plans

The Group pamacipales n various defmed contnbistzon pod-amplovimet benelit plans arganized by miniopal, atonamens regional and
provincial govermments for its employees. Further details of the Group's post-employment benefit plans are disclosed i MNote 39,

() Tramsaciions with other governmend -related entitbes in the PROC

The Groag is 4 govemment-related enterprise md operales in an econoaric regime cumently dominsted by entities directly or indirectly controlled
by tee People’s Repulblic of (hina terough government authontics, apemcies, sffilisttons and other organizations (col lectively refared 1o s
“govemment-related mtities™y,

Apart from transactions with parant company and its fellow ubsidsanes (vote 3%(2p), the Group has tmnsadions that are collectively bul nal
individually stenificant with other government-related entitics, which include but not limited to the following
rendering and recerving services, meluding but not limiled to lelecommunications services
= sabes wnd piirchises of goods, properties snd oflier assets
b lease of nesets
= depositing and borrowmg
. use of public wilities
‘These transadtions are conduated in the ordinary course of the Group's business on terms comparable to the terms of ransactions with other
emtitics that are pot governmant-related The Group preces ils lelecommunications services and produds based on government -seguluted L iff mies,
where applicable, or based on commercial negotiations. The Group has also established procurement palicies and approval processes for pardhases of
products and services, which do not depend om whether the counierparties ane govemnment-related emities or mol
The diredors of the Company belicve the above information provides appropriate discloasre of relaled panty irsnsactions.

F-&2
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3%, POST-EMPLOYMENT RENEFITS PLANS

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group panticipates in various defimed contrituation retirement plans organized by mumicipal,
mston omous regional and provincial govermmients for its emplovees. The Growp is required to make contributions to the relirement plans ol rales rnging
froam 14% to 2004 of the salaries, bonuses snd certsin allowsances of the employess. A member of the plan i entitled to 2 pension equal to a fived
proportion of the salary prevailing & the member s retirement date, Other than the above, the Groug also participates in sapplementary defined
combribution retirement plans managed by independent external parties wherehy the Group is required 1o make contribaions to the retirement plans al
fined rates of the employees’ subarics, bonuses md certain allowances. The Group has ne other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

‘The Groug’s contributions for the above plans for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2015 and 3009 were BAMBG.284 and RMBT 256 and
RMEE 616, respectively.

The amnint payable for contrlutions to the above defmed contmbation retirement plis as of December 31, 2018 and 2009 was RMBGTS awl
RMBTS5 respectively.

40 SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS

The Groap implemented & share appreciation mghts plan For members of ils management Lo provide incentives to these employees. Under this
plan, share apprectalion rights are granded in units with each unil representing one H share. Mo sliares will be ssued under the shire appredation nglis
plan. Upon exercise of the share appreciation rights, a recipient will receive, subjed 1o any sppliceble withholding tax, a cash myment m EMB,
translated from the Hong Kong dollar smount equal to the product of the number of share appreciation rights exercised and the difference between the
coercise price and markel price of the Company’s H shares at the date of exercise based on the applicable exchange rate between EMB and Hong Kong
dodlar af the date of the exercise. The Company recognizes compensstion expense of the share appreciation rights over the applicable period.

In Movember 2018, the Company sppeoved the granting of 2,394 million share appreciation right units to eligible emplovees. Under the terms of
thig grant, all share appreciation mghishad o contractual life of five years from date af graml and an exercise price af HKS3.8] perunit. A recipient of
share apprecifion rights may exercise the rights in stages commencing Movember 2020, A= of each of the third, fourth and fifth snniversary of the date
of grant, the tolal number of share sppreciation nghts exercisable may nol in aggregate exooed 33 3%, 66, 7% and 100.0%, respedively, of the total

share agpreciation rights granted 1o such person,

Durmg the vear enched December 31, 2018 and 2009, no share appreciation mght onils were exercesed, For the year ended December 31, 2019,
compensation expense of RAMB1 36 was recognized by the Group in respect of share appeeciation rights (2015: RMB 300

As of December 31, 2008 and 2019, the carying smount of the lisbility anising from share appreciation rights were RMB 30 and RME 166,
nespretively.
F-63

217/243



EDINETOOOO

Oo00000000000000000000000(E05927)

Oooooooa

Tabds of Contants

CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al Benminbd amounts inmillions, except per share data ad except otherwise stated)
41.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Dietails of the Company's subsaduries which peincapally affected the resubts, aseas and liabilities of te Group as of December 31, 2019 wre o=

Followe:
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CHINA TELECOM CORPORATION LIMITEDR AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Al Renminid amounts i millions, exeept per stare deta and except otherwise statod)

4l PRINCIPAL SUBSIDEARIES (continusd)

Exepd for Shemghen Shocon Telecommunications Compmny Limited which i 51% owned by the Company, Zhejimg Yixin Techmology Co., Lid,
which is 65% owned by the Company and E-surfing Pay Co., Lid which is 78 74% owned by the Company @nd Finance Company. which is T
awned by the Company, all of the above subsidiaries are directly or indirectly whalby-cwned by the Company. Mo subsidsarics of the Group have
maberind non-coniralling imeres. Nane of the subsidarnics had isied any debt securstzes &t the end af the year,

4L ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANDJUDGMENTS

The Groagy's fmancinl pesition and reslts of operations e senative o sccomting methods, ssumplions md edimates that underlic the
preparation of the consolidated financial stalaments. Management bases the sssumplions and estimates on historical experience and on other factors that
the menagement believes to be reasonable and which form the basis foe making judgrnents abost matters thal 206 not redily sppasent from other
snarces, On mn ongoang bass, manugenen] evaluates its edimates. Actonl results may differ from those egtimates s facts, circumstances and
conditicns change

The scledtion of sgnificant accmnting policies, the judgments and ollver uncentamtics affeding applicition of thase palicies and the smsativaty af
reporfed resulisto dranges n comditions and ssammptions are Factors to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial statements. The
significant sccounting policies are sef forth in Note 3. Management believes the follosving significant accounling policies mvolve the most significani
Judgments and estimates used in Use preparation of the consolidated fnuncial dsemants,

Provislom of ECL for accounts receivable

The Grougr uses provision mainix 1o calculate ECL for the accounts receivable, The provision rtes are based on customier” s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay by groupings of varions debtors that have similar loss pattems. The provision matrix is based on the
CGroup's historical defandt rates taking into consideration reasonable and ampportable forward-locking information that ks availsble without undhie cost or
effon. The hastoncal observed defanlt rtes are reassessesd anmually, and changes i the forward-lookimg information are consigered, In addition,
acomis receivable with significant balances or oredil-mpaired are sssessed for ECL mdividually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in edimates. The information about the ECL and the Group’s scooumts receivable are disclosed in
mobes 5 amd 35,

Empairenent of gooiwill and long lived assets

If aroumstamces indicate that the camymg amount of a long-lived assel may mot be recoverable, the asset may be considered “mpaired”, and an
impmrment loss would be recognized in accordance with sceounting pelicy for imparment of long-lived assets as deseribed i Note ). The carving
amounts of the Group's long-lived assets, including property, plant md equipment, righl-of-use assels, mbmgible assets with finite useful lives,
constniction in progress and contract costs are reviewed pariodically to determine whether there is any mdication of impaimment. These assets are tested
fiar impairment whenever events or changes in circumsiznces iindscate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoversble. For goodwill, the
mpmEmment ieAmg is performed mnally at the end of esch reporting period. The recoverabde ot of @ 3=t of cash-generating unit is the grester
af its value in use and Fair value less costs of disposal. When an asset does not genersie cash flows largely independent of those from other assels, the
pecaveralsle amoiid 13 determilived Dof the smallet graap of ssets Ut generates cieh tiflows independently (& a cash-genaratmg unit), In determining
the value in use, expected future cish flows generated by the assets are discounted (o their present value. An imparment loss s recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or s cash-generating unit ecceeds its estimated recoverable amount. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value of the
Crougr's long-lived assels becatise quoled market prices for aich sseets may nol be rewdily avarlable. In determimimg the value in use, expeded fituse
cash flows generated by ithe asset ane discounted Lo their present value, which requires significant judement relating to level of revenue, amount of
aperating costs and spplicable discount mte, Management uses all readily availabde information im determaning an soumt thal 15 8 reasanable
approsimestion of recoverable smount. including estimates based on reasonable md supportable assumplions mnd projections of revenue and amoum of
aperating cods.

For the yer ended December 31, 2019, o provisin for mmpazmment loss was made agains the carying value of longlmved assets (2018: Milh For
the vear ended December 31, 200 7, provizion for impaimment losses of RME D0 were made agums the aurying vahie of fang-lived stz In
determiming the recoverable amoamt of these equepmen. significant judgments were required in estimating future cash flows, level of revenue, amount
of operating costs and applicable discount rate,

Changes in these estimates could have a significan mpact on the carrying valee of the assetz and could result in sdditienal impairment chigge or
reversal of impairment i fishare periods,

F-&5
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4L ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANDJUDGMENTS (continued)

Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets with finste useful lives are depreciated and amortized on a siraight:line basis over the
estimuted uselul lives of the assets, fter taking into sccount their estimated residunl value. Managemen| reviews the eatimated uscful lives snd residual
valses of the aseets amually in order 1o defermine: the amoum of depreciation and amortization epense to be recorded duaring any reporting period. The
usefisl lives and residieal values are based on the Group's histerical expericnce with similar assels and take into scoount anticpated technological
changes. The depreciation and amontization expense for future periods is adjusted ifihere are significant changes from previous etinmtes,

43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS 1S5UED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING FERIOD ENDED DECEMVEBER 31, 2009

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial stabements, the TASE has issued the following new and amendments to standards which are
nol vet effective and not carly adopted for the anmual sccounting pericd ended Deceamber 31, 201 %

EfTesthve for scommming
jprviad begimnieg oo o alter

Amendments to IFRS 3, “Definirion of a Busness " Jawiary 1, 2020

Amendments to IAS | and [AS & “Definition of Matertal ™~ January 1, 2030

Amendments to IFRS 9, TAS 3% and IFRS 7, “hrteres Rete Benclmark Reform January 1, 2020

IFRS 17, “fnowesace Comfracds ™ Jawary 1, 2021

Amenchnents to 1AS | “Clad fication of Liabilities as Cuovent or Nom-curnens Jamary |, 2022

Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28, “Sale or Conribanion of Azsets berween an Investor and (63 A soclare or Jolwt

Femture To be detenmined

In addition 1o the above new mnd amendmenis to dandards, 4 revised Concepium] Framewaork for Financial Reporting was issued in 2015, Its
comsequerilinl amendients, the Amendments 1o References to the Conceplual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effedive for annual periods
begmning on or after Jamuary 1, 20240,

‘The: Grouge is in the process of making an assesament of the impact that wall result from adoping the new and amendments to standards aed by
the TASE which are not yet effective for the accounting period ended on December 31, 2019, 5o far the Group believes that the adoption of these new
and amnendments 1o gandards is unlilely 1o have 2 significant impact on it financial pesition edthe results of operations.

44, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
{a)  Issie of corporate bonds

COn March 10, 2020, the Groug issued three-year, RMVB 2,000 corporate bonds to qualified imvestors in Shangha Seamities Exchange with smnual
mterest rale of 2,90,

(B} W lwpact of the Movel Coronavires (COVID-19) Epldemic

Fuollowing the outbreak of the nove] coromavins (COVID-19) gpidamic in eardy 2020, related prevertion and control measures scross Chin snd
olher part of the world have been implemented. In addition. the Groap has taken 2 series of measires o ensure smooth and reliable conmmmications,
The contimuous pandemic has impaded business develapment and network: construction of the Group. The Group keeps continuoes attenticn on the
developaents of and changes in this situation, imely assesses md actively responds 1o its impacts on the foancial position, operating resslts and ofher

aspeets af the Groap,
45 PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

‘The parent an<d ultimate holding company of the Company as of December 31, 2009 is Chima Telecommumications Corporation, 3 slate-owned
amerprise established in the FRC.
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20.37 18.52 17.32 17.48 16.75
18.55 15.06 15.75 16.01 14.86
19.41 16.38 16.61 16.71 15.80
18.56 16.78 17.28 16.16 15.60

State Administration of Foreign Exchange 100

2019 11 2019 12 2020 1 2020 2 2020 3 2020 4

15.63 15.68 16.06 15.96 15.73 15.45
15.35 15.42 15.48 15.57 14.79 15.10
15.50 15.57 15.81 15.74 15.33 15.25

State Administration of Foreign Exchange 100

15.11 2020
State Administration of Foreign Exchange 100
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of China Telecom Corporation Limited:

Opinion on the Financia Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of China Telecom Corporation Limited and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2018 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements’). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2019, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”), the Company’s internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2019, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 24, 2020, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Changesin Accounting Policies

As discussed in Note 3(I) and 3(j) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
revenues from contracts with customers and its method of accounting for financia instruments in 2018 due to the adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standard 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the related Amendments and
International Financial Reporting Standard 9, “Financial Instruments’, respectively.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financia statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for leases
in 2019 due to adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard 16, “Leases’.

Basisfor Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financia statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due
to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM (continued)

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of China Telecom Corporation Limited:

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financia statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as awhole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on
the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Revenue Recognition—Refer to Notes 3(1) and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

Revenues from the provision of telecommunications services are, in general, recognized as performance obligations are
satisfied. Fees for telecommunications packages are recognized for each service type in the packages. The data records are
captured and the revenue transactions are recorded by the I T billing systems.

We identified revenue recognition as a critical audit matter because there is an inherent industry risk around the accuracy of
revenue recorded by the IT billing systems given the complexity of the systems and the large volumes of data processed by the
systems. This required an increased extent of effort, including the need for usto involve our I T specidlists, to identify, test, and
evaluate the Company’s systems, software applications, and automated controls.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our proceduresin relation to revenue recognition included the following, among others:

. With the assistance of our I T specialist, we tested below:

- the IT environment in which the billing systems reside, including interface controls between different 1T
applications.

- the key controls over the calculation of the amounts billed to customers and the capturing and recording of the
revenue transactions.

- the key controls over the authorization of the rate changes and the input of such ratesto the billing systems.

- the end-to-end reconciliations from data records to the billing systems and to the general ledger.

- the material journals processed between the billing systems and the general ledger, on a sample basis.

- the accuracy of customer bill calculations and the respective revenue transactions recorded, on a sample basis.

239/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO000OO00D0DO000DO000nDOodnoE.s27)
oOoOooodn

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM (continued)
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of China Telecom Corporation Limited:

Critical Audit Matters (continued)

Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets—Refer to Notes 3(h), 12 and 42 to the consolidated financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company’s evaluation of goodwill and long-lived assets for impairment involves the comparison of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit, which is the greater of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal, to its carrying
value. In determining the value in use, expected future cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to level of revenue, amount of operating costs and applicable discount rate.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.

We identified the impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets as a critical audit matter because the impairment assessment of
goodwill and long-lived assets requires the management to exercise significant judgments. This required a high degree of
auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our valuation specialists, when performing
audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of management’s estimates and assumptions related to the estimation of level
of revenue, amount of operating costs and applicable discount rate.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our proceduresin relation to the impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets included, among others:

. We tested the effectiveness of controls over management’s impairment assessment of goodwill and long-lived assets,
such as controls related to management’s selection of the discount rate and key inputs to the projected cash flows, such
as the number of subscribers, average revenue per subscriber and amount of operating costs.

. With the assistance of our valuation specialists, we assessed the discount rate and assumptions used by the management
in the value in use model and compared the discount rate used by the management to externally derived data and our own
assessments of key inputs used in deriving the discount rate.

. With the assistance of our valuation specialists, we compared the key inputs to the projected cash flows, such as the

number of subscribers, average revenue per subscriber and amount of operating costs, with corresponding historical data
to evaluate the reasonableness of the management’s projections.

. We assessed and challenged the significant judgments and estimates used in the management’ s impairment assessment
and evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by the management.

/9 Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Hong Kong, the People's Republic of China

March 24, 2020

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2013.
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